HIS WAS A YEAR THAT MANY
OMPANIES DECIDED TO GO

BACK TO THE BASICS.
ORTUNATELY

WE NEVER LEFT
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PNIVI IS built on the basics:

integrity and fairness in all our
dealings with people; responsible
stewardship for our environment
and the natural resources we use,
the communities we serve, and

the corporate assets we manage;
engagement in making a difference
through innovation, creativity, service
and teamwork. Our strategic plan is
straightforward. Our philosophy is
simple: delivering value to customers
builds value for shareholders.




r.owSHAREHOLDERS

While 2002 was the most turbulent year in the energy industry’s history, PNM Resources succeeded
in laying a strong foundation for future growth, both in our core electric and gas utility and in our

wholesale power marketing business.

We negotiated an agreement setting PNM retail electric rates in New Mexico for the next five years.
This agreement provides PNM with a predictable revenue stream and aflows us to efficiently combine
all of our generating resources to serve both retail and wholesale customers. If New Mexico decides to
continue the existing system of public utility. regulation, PNM will remain the sole subplier of electricity

in our home territory.

We expect the reduced revenues under the new, lower electric rates to be offset by lower fuel costs
at our San Juan Generating Station. The shift from a surface to an underground mine is now complete,
giving us access to a higher quality coal at lower cost. Since the plant burns more than-é million tons of

coal a year, these savings should be substantial over the life of the mine.

With new electric rates in' place, we are now taking steps to improve the rate of retum in our gas utility.
| know that no one, including me, likes to pay more for anything. But we need the opportunity to earn an
appropriate return on our gas business. In January 2003, PNM filed a request for a $37.6 million increase in
_ the.fees we charge customers for natural gas service. If approved by regulators, that increase will take
effect at the end of 2003. \ ‘

We expect that eamings growth on the utility side of our business will flow from the continued economic growth
in New Mexico and from the cost reductions achieved by making our operations more efficient and productive.

Despite weakness in the national economy, PNM retail electric revenues rose nearly 2 percent in 2002.
The growth in our local service territory has exceeded the national average in each of the last 10 years,

and we expect this pattern will continue in 2003 and beyond.

A ROCKY YEAR IN THE WHOLESALE MARKET

In sharp contrast to the growth in our utility business, PNM wholesale power revenues plunged more than
60 percent in 2002. Because of low prices and slack activity in that market, the wholesale power business

contributed just 28 percent of total operating revenues in 2002, compared to about 60 percent in 2001.

Painful as it has been, | believe this steep downturn will ultimately benefit both PNM and the market as
a whole. What we saw in 2002 was the necessary correction to the excesses bred by the temporary bubble
in 2001. Today, wholesale prices and activity remain depressed as the industry slowly absorbs all the new
generating capacity added over the last two years. But as supply and demand come back into balance,
the wholesale power market can return to what it should have been all along: an efficient means of

matching sellers and buyers to the benefit of both.




“Our vision is to build America’s

Best Merchant Utility, a company that

serves both electric and gas customers

as a regulated utility and sells power in
the competitive wholesale market. To
get there, we’re taking a systematic
approach to improving every aspect of

our business.”
JEFFRY E. STERBA

Chairman, President and CEQ
PNM Resources




Two-thousand six hundred employees, one
shared vision: Build America’s Best Merchant

Utility. In 2002 we made measurable progress

toward that goal.

.~ In that revived market, PNM will be well positioned to build on our past success. For more than a decade,
~our strategy has focused not on short-term ups and downs in the market but on building long-term stable
| relationships by meeting the needs of smaller utilities and other customers.

For-example, at the end of 2002 PN# agreed to provide 80 megawatts of power to the U.S. Navy

in San Diego, California. This contract, which will bring us $42 million in annual revenues, represents

* the kind of solid base we are building in our wholesale business. Including our obligation to serve retail
customers in New Mexico, about three quarters of PNM generating capacity is now committed under

long term agreements.

ADDING GENERATION RESOURCES
" Our continued participation in the wholesale power market, together with growth in our home

territory, requires us to invest in serving those new customers.

Borer ol One of my personal highlights in. 2002 came on a trip to a West Texas “wind farm,” where we climbed a
ladder 210 feet into the air to mspect a generating turbine attached to three giant blades. That visit was in
_ preparation for announcing PNMs commitment to the New Mexico Wind Energy Center. When it's

operational later this year, this wind farm will be one of the largest such projects in the nation, with 136 turbines
generating 200 megawatts of electricity - enough power to supply nearly 100 ,000 homes in the Southwest.

PNM has agreed to buy all that power under a long-term contract The wind farm will be a competitively
priced source of clean, renewable energy both for our retail customers and for PNM wholesale customers
throughout the region. While coal, natural gasand nuclear energy will continue to supply the majority of
PNM's power for years to come, this project represents a historic step forward in reducing our reliance on
fossil fuel generation. This positions our company as a leader in the move toward "green energy.”

Our wind energy commitment was just one of three additions to the PNM generating portfoho in 2002.
The other two are clean burning natural gas-fired power plants in southern New Mexico. Together they
produce about 221 megawatts, increasing PNM net generating capacity by about 13 percent.
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WORKPLACE

RECOGNIZE GOOD

letter to
SHARENOQLOERS

{ caontinued )

EXCELLENCE

HONESTY, INTEGRITY AND SOUND BUSINESS PRACTICES

Discussing the wholesale energy market brings up a painful subject: the scandals that have undermined
investor confidence in corporate America over the past year. | want to assure you that PNM Resources
did not engage in any of the misconduct that has recently tarnished our industry's reputation. In fact,
most of the reforms now being adopted by others have long been standard practice for your company.
Our "Do the Right Thing” business ethics program, for instance, has been in place since 1995 and has
been updated several times since then. All employees engage in refresher training to make sure that our

dealings with customers, co-workers, business partners and shareholders are above reproach.

We have equally high standards in corporate governancé. Your Board of Directors is actively involved
in setting strategic direction and holding management accountable for our performance. Except for
myself the board is.made up entirely of independent directors. Their combined wealth of industry expertise,
broad experience and sound business judgment is an invaluable resource for our company. All of us share

an unwavering commitment to serving the best interests of shareholders.

You'll find more details about the PNM Resources Board, including a description of the key committees
that oversee our accounting practices, disclosure standards and executive compensation, in the 2003

proxy statement.

CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT TOWARD A BOLD GOAL

Our vision is to build America’s Best Merchant Utility, a company that serves both electric and gas customers
as a regulated utility and sells power in the competitive wholesale market. To get there, we're taking

a systematic approach to improving every aspect of our business.

We have established a set of high-level goals in customer satisfaction, workplace excellence,
process improvement, being a good neighbor and driving profitable growth. Each of these goals aims
to deliver impro;lted value to our key stakeholders. Performance m_eésure_s built érpund each goal help us
find and close fhe gaps between where we are and where we Want to be. Through this process we
engage everyone in the company, from top executives to frant-line workers, in aligning their personal

efforts with the goals we have all agreed on.




“We'’re building homes today that are more energy efficient, more
comfortable, more affordable and healthier than was possible 10-15
years ago. With the special meters PNM has installed in 30 of our new
homes, we're learning more and more about how to build a better home.”

JERRY WADE - drtistic Homes, Albuquerque, NM

EAT ONES.

97,000

homes

Ninety-seven thousand New Mexico
homes could be served by the power
generated by the New Mexico Wind
Fnergy Center. When complete later
this year, the third largest wind farm
in the nadon will add 200 megawatts
of renewable energy to the PNM

generation portfolio.




PROTECTING THE

ART

IS NOT JUS
A JOB.

Green Zia Award
PN
Conrame N
vhe 2002 N Vieviee (
Aeard

CrootLr e




IT'S A

PRIVILEGE.

For instance, identifying and improving the processes in our customer service call center has allowed us

to cut the average time a customer waits on hold to just 26 seconds. That's one of the reasons a 2002
national survey ranked PNM first among the utilities surveyed in customer call satisfaction. The same
systematic approach has helped us reduce the number and length of outages. In another survey last year,

your company ranked number one in the nation for system reliability.

We measure ourselves against the industry’s top performers because our goal is to be an industry
leader. We want to rank number one. This is what we mean by America's "best" merchant utility.

Continual improvement is making us more flexible in adapting to change, more responsive to customers

and more tightly focused on transforming customer needs into shareholder value.

PNM is building nesting platforms and
perches, installing safety devices
throughont our system and working
with wildlite preservation groups io help
safeguard New Mexico habitat. Kree,
a Swainson’s Hawk, is part of a
HawkWatch program that uses birds
not suitable for rehabilitation i the wild

to teach school children about raptors.




PROCESS QUALTTY

%
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4770
Forty-seven percent of the developers who
rely on s to install new electvie and gas
service say they were completely satistied
with PINM fast year - move than double
the number who gave us the highest grade
three years ago. We've streamlined the
process and made it casier for the customer by
providing *one stop shopping” for wtility,

phone and cable TV hookup.

ATTERS.

OUR COMMITMENT TO YOU

PROCESS

Your company earned $1.61 per diluted share in 2002, down from $3.77 per share in 2001, primarily due
to lower prices and reduced activity in the wholesale power market. Including the 86 cents per share paid

in common stock dividends, total return on PNM Resources stock was a negative 11.7 percent in 2002.

By comparison, the stocks in the S&P 500 index posted a negative 22.1 percent total return in 2002,
! while the stocks in a peer group of electric and gas utilities posted a negative 18.0 percent total return.
Over the past three years, PNM total return has been +60.9 percent compared to -37.4 percent for the
S&P 500 and +13.8 percent for our peer group.

letter to | believe our performance relative to our peers says something about the folks who run your company.

SHARSHOLDEKRS

o We're conservative, we're cautious.
(rontinued )

As a result, PNM Resources today has a continuing strong cash flow and a healthy financial position.
At the end of 2002, your company not only renewed but expanded our line of credit, adding four new banks
to the pool of participants and increasing the company’s borrowing limit from $150 million to $195 million.

We are committed to maintaining our investment grade credit rating in 2003.

In a challenging year, your company emerged more efficient and productive and financially
stronger than many other companies in our industry. In February 2003, at a time when some other utilities

were being forced to reduce or even eliminate their dividend to shareholders, we were able to increase

the PNM Resources dividend by 4.5 percent, to an annual rate of 92 cents per share.




Within 3-5 days after receiving the permits,
a PNM crew, like the one Melton Webb is
a part of, is on site to install electric and gas

lines for a new home or business.

i
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Last year we rolled out-a new ad campaign, “A Personal Commitment to New Mexico,” with commercials,
billboards and print ads featuring not actors but real PNM workers. | was pleased and proud to see the
way that slogan was so enthusiastically adopted by everyone in our organization. The message strikes a
chord with our employees as a natural éxpression of what they do every day in providing reliable and
affordable energy services.

It's that level of commitment that gives me confidence in the future of PNM Resources. Our commitment
is not just to customers, to employees and to the communities we serve, but to the shareholders whose

i investment has made our company what it is today.

We have many things on our table to manage in 2003. But in closing let me list our five top priorities for the year:

« Continue progress toward our performance objectives;

« Achieve an acceptable return on our gas business through a successful outcome from the pending rate case;

« Continue our incremental expansion in the wholesale electricity market by making additional long-term sales;
f « Expand our efforts in environmental Stewardship‘ through renewable energy and our company-wide
emphasis on environmental awareness; and

L « Pursue new growth opportunities as our marketplace changes.

We will demonstrate our commitment to shareholder value by continuing
to improve our balance sheét strength, provide a secure dividend, and
find ways to provide eamings growth over the next few years.

ltisa pleasure to lead your company forward into 2003.

Sincerely,

Feffry E. Sterba

Chairman, President and_CEO

The underlying growth rate in our home service

territory has exceeded the national average for

most of the past decade.

PNM peak-electric load in the summer of 2002 rose 4 percsnt to
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PNM Resources, Inc. (the “Company”) considers this annual report to contain “forward-looking statements” under Federal

securities law. It is published to assist shareholders in evaluating the Company and its securities. This report does not contain

all of the information material to an evaluation and should be read in conjunction with its periodic reports, proxy statement

and other information the Company files with the Securities and Exchangé Commission. Please refer to “Disclosure

Regarding Forward-Looking Statements,” for a listing of the factors which could cause the Company’ actual financial results

to differ materially from the prospective information provided by the Company in forward-looking statements.




SELECTED FINANCGIAL DATA

: (In thousands except per share amounts and ra’aos)
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The following is management’s assessment of the Company's financial condition and the significant factors affecting the results
of operations. This discussion should be read in conjunction with the Company’s consolidated financial statements and related
notes, Trends and contingencies of a material nature are discussed to the extent known and considered relevant.

OVERVIEW

The Holding Company is an investor-owned holding company of energy and energy related companies. lts principal subsidiary,
PNM, is an integrated public utility primarily engaged in the generation, transmission, distribution and sale-and marketing of
electricity; transmission, distribution and sale of natural gas within the State of New Mexico; and the sale and marketing of electricity
in the Western United States. :

Upon the completion on December 31, 2001, of a one-for-one share exchange between PNM and the Holding Company; the
Holding Company became the parent company of PNM. Prior to the share exchange, the Holding Company had existed as a
subsidiary of PNM. The new parent company began trading on the New York Stock Exchange under the same PNM symbol beginning
on December 31, 2001. ~ '

COMPETITIVE STRATEGY

The Company is positioned as a “merchant utility,” prii’narily operating as a regulated energy service provider. The Company is
also engaged in the sale and marketing of electricity in the competitive energy market place. As a utility, PNM:has an obligation to
serve its customers under the jurisdiction of the New Mexico Public Regulation Commission ("PRC").-As a merchant, PNM markets
excess production from the utility, as well as unregulated generation, into a competitive marketplace. The Company-also has an electric
power -marketing operation focused on purchasing wholesale electricity in the open market for future resale or to provide energy
to jurisdictional customers in New Mexico when the Company’s generation assets cannot satisfy demand.. The marketing operations
utilize an asset-backed marketing strategy, whereby the Company’s aggregate net open position for the sale of electricity is covered
by the Company’s excess generation capabilities. . ’ ' k

As it currently operates, the Company's principal business segments are Utility Operations, which include Electric Services
{“Electric") and Gas Services (“Gas"), and Generation and Marketing Operations (“Generation and Marketing”). Electric consists of
two major business lines that include distribution and transmission. The transmission business line does not meet the definition of
a segment due to its immateriality and is combined with the distribution business line for disclosure purposes.-Unregulated
Operations provide energy related services. : k ’

. The Electric and Gas Services strategy is directed at supplying reasonably priced and reliable energy to retail customers through.
- customer=driven operational excellence, high quality customer service, cost efficient processes, and improved overall organizational performance.

The Generation and Marketing strategy calls for increased asset-backed marketing and generation capacity supported by long-term
contracts, balanced with stringent risk management policies. The Company’s future growth plans call for approximately 75% of its
new generation portfolio to be committed through long-term contracts, including sales to retail customers. Growth will be dependent
on market development, and upon the Company's ability to generate funds for the Company's future expansion. Although the
current environment has led the Company to scale back its expansion plans, the Company will continue to operate in the wholesale
market. Expansion of the Company’s generating portfolio will depend upon acquiring favorably priced assets at strategic locations
and securing long-term commitments for the purchase of power from the acquired plants. ‘ '

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Consolidated

The Company's net earnings available to common shareholders for the year ended December 31, 2002 were $63.7. million, a
57.5% decrease in net earnings from $149.8 million in 2001. This decrease primarily reflects the slowdown in the wholesale electric
market, where both prices and market liquidity were significantly lower than the prior year. Despite the slowdown in the wholesale
electric market, PNM’s electric utility operations recorded an operating income growth of 5.3%. This growth came from a combination
of load growth and cost savings, demonstrating the balance the regulated utility provides in the Company’s “merchant utility” strategy.
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Earnings in 2002 and 2001 were aﬁected by.certain non-recurring gams and charges. These special items are detailed in the individual
business segment discussions below. The following table enumerates these non- recurrmg charges and shows their effect on diluted

earnings per share, in thousands, except per share amounts

Net Earnings Available for
Common Shareholders

Adjustment for Special (Gains) asid Chairges
{net of income tax effects):
Realignment costs
Transmission line project wnte-off
PVNGS* and Four Corners severance costs
Contribution to PNM Foundation
Nonrecoverable coal
mine decommissioning. costs
Write-off of Avistar investments
Western Resources acquisition and ‘
legal costs A
Total
Net Earnings Available For Common . :
Shareholders Excluding Special Gains - -
and Charges

*Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Stat|on ( FVNGS")

To adjust reported net earnings and diluted earmngs per: share to exclude the non-recurring gains and charges, gains,-net of
income tax expense, are subtracted from reported net earmngs under GAAP, andcharges, net of income tax benefit, are added

back to reported net earnings under GAAP.

The following discussion is based on the ﬁnancnal information presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements - Segment

EPS : EPS
EARNINGS {DILUTED) EARNINGS (DILUTED)
7 $ 63,686 $1.61 $149,847 $3.77
5,337 0.14 . .
2911 0.07 . :

942 0.03

. . 3,021 0.08
- : 7,840 0.20
- . 7,907 0.20
(1,471) 0.04) 10,859 027
7,719 0.20 29,627 075
$1.81 $179,474 $4.52

-$ 71,405

Information note in the Notes to Consohdated Fmanc'al Statements

Utility Operations

Electric

The table below sets forth the operating results for the Electric business segment.

Operating revenues:

External customers

Intersegment revenues

Total revenues
Cost of energy sold
Intersegment purchases

Total cost of energy
Gross margin
Administrative and other
Depreciation and amortization
Transmission and distribution costs
Taxes other than income taxes
Income taxes

Total non-fuel operating expenses
Operating income

" Yoar Ended

Irs)

$570,089  $559,226 $10,863
707 707 -
570,796 559,933 10,863
3,888 5,102 (1,214)
348,935 341,608 7,327
352,823 346,710 6,113
217,973 213,223 4,750
52,660 48,821 3,839
34,025 32,666 1,359
34,236 37,376 (3,140)
12,482 12,336 146
24,121 24,607 (486)
157,524 155,806 1,718
$'57,417 $ 3,032

$ 60,449
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL COMDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

$ 197,174
247,800
82,009

2,298,542
3,254,576
1,612,723

240,665
7,406,506




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION
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The gross margin, or operating revenues minus cost of energy sold, decreased $1.0 million or 0.8%. This decrease is due mainly
to lower consumption of gas for electric generation of $6.0 million partially offset by a 2.0% growth in customer base of $5.0 million.
Gross margin is expected to decrease in. 2003 due to the expiration of a rate rider in January 2003. The Company currently believes
that gas assets are not earning an adequate level of return. As a result, the Company filed a request for increased rates in January
2003. The Company's last gas rate ca;ifeﬁlihQ was in October 1997.

Total non-fuel operating expenses decreased $2.0 million. of 1.7%. Administrative and other costs decreased. only slightly from
the prior year. In 2002, the Company recognized lower bad debt expense of $3.0 million because of collection improvements and
the absence of losses from the ban:krubtcy‘of a significant customer in 2001, lower amortization costs of $1.2 million for SFAS 106

deferred costs (which were fully amortized in 2001), and lower consulting expenses of $0.5 million-in connection.with cost control

and process improvement initiatives m2001 and lower legal expenses of $0.5 million for routine business matters: These decreases
were mostly offset by higher allocated corporate administrative costs of $5.6 million. Transmission and distribution- costs decreased
$1.8 million or 5.7% primarily due to maintenance performed in 2001 to improve system reliabifity, which did not recur in 2002.
Taxes other than income taxes iricréééed $0.9 million or 13.3% due to the absence of favorable audit outcomes by certain tax
authorities recognized in 2001. Income taxes, which include income taxes for interest charges, decreased $0.5 million or 13.8% due
to lower pre-tax income e ‘

Generation and Marketing Operstions

The table below sets forth the operating results for the Generation and Marketing business segment.

.. Generation. and ‘Marketing
" Year Ended December 31,

_ (In thousands of dollars)

Operating revenues: : .
External customers U $ 325385 $ 1,393,635  $(1,068,250)
Intersegment revenues : 348,935 341,608 7,327
Total revenues : R 674,320 1,735,243 (1,060,923)

Cost of energy sold : 406,310 1,267,887 (861,577)

intersegment purchases 707 707 -
Total cost of energy : 407,017 1,268594  (861577)

Gross margin 267,303 466,649 (199,346)

Administrative and other ; 35,452 34,730 722

Energy production costs 146,901 © 149,585 (2,684)

Depreciation and amortization SR 43,837 42,766 1,071

Taxes other than income taxes . 11,060 8,865 2,195

Income taxes e 5,316 80,138 (74,822)
Total non-fuel operating expenses 242,566 316,084 (73,518)

Operating income - 3 $ 24737 $ 150,565 $ (125,828)

Operating revenues declined $1.1 ybillkion or 61.1% for the year to $674.3 million. This decrease in wholesale electricity sa‘les primarily
reflects the slowdown in the wholesale electric market, which resulted from steep declines in wholesale prices and market liquidity
as compared to the prior year period..

The significanitly higher wholesale pricing in 2001 was driven by increased demand in California, a lack of generating assets to
serve the market and the impact of warm weather. By contrast, 2002 has seen relatively mild weather in the West, an abundance of
low cost hydropower and weak economic conditions in the region. As a result, the average price realized by the Company fell to
approximately $34 per MWh'in 2002 versus $111 per MWh in 2001. The low wholesale prices are expected to continue into 2003.

The decline in merchant sales volumes reflect the reduction in market participants in the wholesale market-caused by bankruptcy,
reduced credit quality of firmis in the market and firms exiting the wholesale market. There are also significant unresolved legal,
political and regulatory issues that had a dampening effect on activity in the marketplace. As a result, the Company’s spot market
and short-term sales have declined significantly. The Company delivered wholesale (bulk) power of 9.5 million MWh of electricity
for the year ended December 31, 2002, compared to 12.6 million MWh for the same period in 2001.




Although other firms have exited the wholesale market or have had their access to the wholesale market limited due to concerns
over credit quality, the Company remains committed to be a participant in this marketplace. While market liquidity is weak, the
Company will focus on long-term relationships with smaller wholesale customers (small investor-owned utilities, municipal utilities
and co-ops). At the same time, the Company will continue to monitor market conditions. This commitment to the wholesale market
leaves the Company poised to participate in the market as liquidity returns and regulatory issues are resolved.

The following table shows revenues by customer class:

Generation and Marketing Revenues

Year Ended December 31,

(Ir; fiw;usands of dél/.ars)' . ] :
Intersegment sales $ 348,935 $ 341,608
Long-term contract 40,132 77,250
Other merchant sales* 266,956 1,313,739
Other 18,297 2,646

$ 674,320 $1,735,243

*Includes mark-to-market gains/(losses).
The following table shows sales by customer class:

Generation and Marketing Sales (Megawatt hours)

Year Ended December 31,

=

Intersegment sales 7,406,506 7,255,297
Long-term contract 844,168 1,463,031
Other merchant sales 8,605,987 11,114,069

16,856,661 19,832,397

The gross margin, or operating revenues minus cost of energy sold, decreased $199.3 million or 42.7%. Lower margins were created
primarily by weak pricing, less price volatility and lower market liquidity. In addition, unexpected outages at Four Corners reduced
availability of power for wholesale sales. These lower margins were partially offset by a favorable change in the mark-to-market position
of the marketing portfolio of $55.3 million year-over-year ($29.5 million gain in 2002 versus $25.8 million loss in 2001). A majority
of the gain in 2002 represents the reversal of previously recognized mark-to-market losses. :

Total non-fuel operating expenses decreased $73.5 million or 23.3%. Administrative and other costs increased $0.7 million or
2.1% for the year. This increase is primarily due to higher corporate administrative cost allocations of $4.9 million, partially offset by
an adjustment of $1.6 milfion to prior year San Juan Generating Station (“SJGS”) participant billings (the Company is the operator
of SJGS and shares costs with other owners) and lower costs of $2.3 million resulting from increased capital activity for generation
expansion. Energy production costs decreased $2.7 million or 1.8% for the period reflecting the benefits of $2.3 million for the
acceleration into 2001 of a planned outage at SJGS, decreased costs of $3.5 million for planned outages at SJGS and an adjustment
of $3.6 million to prior year Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station {“PVNGS") billings from Arizona Public Service Company, the
operator of PYNGS. These cost decreases were partially offset by costs of $4.0 million related to the future expansion of Afton
Generating Station (“Afton”), severance costs of $1.6 million at PYNGS and Four Corners Power Plant ("Four Corners"”), costs of
$1.4 million for planned and unplanned outages at Four Corners and costs of $0.8 million at Lordsburg Generating Station (“Lordsburg”),
which became fully operational in June 2002. Depreciation and amortization increased $1.1 million or 2.5% due to the addition of
Lordsburg. Taxes other than income taxes increased $2.2 million or 24.8% reflecting adjustments recorded in the prior year for favorable audit
outcomes by certain tax authorities. Income taxes, which include income taxes for interest charges, decreased $74.8 million or 93.4%
due to a decline in pre-tax income.
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The following discussion is based on-the financial information presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements - Segment
Information note. The tables below set forth the operating results for each business segment.

Utility Operations

Electric
The table below sets forth the operating results for the Electric business segment.

Year Ended December 31,

T

(In thousands of dollars)

Mnmwu ) . }
‘External customers $ 559,226 . $ 538758 $ 20,468
Intersegment revenues : 707 v 707 -
Total revenues 559,933 539,465 20,468
Cost of energy sold < 5,102 5,048 54
Intersegment purchases 341,608 324,744 16,864
Total cost of energy 346,710 329,792 16,918
Gross margin ) 213,223 209,673 3,550
Administrative and other 48,821 46,905 1,916
Depreciation and amortization 32,666 31,480 1,186
Transmission and distribution costs 37,376 33,092 4,284
Taxes other than income taxes 12,336 14,102 (1,766)
Income taxes 24,607 27,743 (3,136)
Total non-fuel operating expenses 155,806 153,322 2,484
Operating income $ 57417 $ 56,351 $. 1,066

Operating revenues increased $20.5 million or 3.8% for the period to $559.9 million. Retail electricity delivery grew 2.3% to 7.3 million
MWh in 2001 compared to 7.1 million MWh delivered.in the prior year period, resulting in increased revenues of $8.9 million
year-over-year. This volume increase was the result of load growth from economic expansion in New Mexico. I addition; revenues
from third party use of the Company's transmission system increased $9.6 million as a result of additional contracts from increased activity
in the Western power market. Revenues also benefited from a $1.1.million increase in revenue from property leasing.

The following table shows electric revenues by customer class and average customers:

Electric Revenues (In thousands of dollars)
‘Year Ended De

mber 31,
b LR
Residential $ 187,600 $ 186,133

Commercial 242,372 238,243
Industrial 82,752 79,671
Other 47,209 35,418

$ 559,933 $ 539,465
Average customers 377,589 368,506

The following table shows electric sales by customer class:

Electric Sales (Megawatt hours)
Year Ended December 31,
Residential 2,197,889 2,171,945
Commercial 3,213,208 3,133,996
industrial 1,603,266 1,544,367
Other 240,934 238,635
' 7,255,297 7,088,943




The gross margin, or operating revenues minus cost of energy sold, increased $3.6 million, which reflects the increased energy
sales, transmission revenue and property teasing revenue, partially offset by higher cost for the electricity sold to retail customers.
Electric exclusively purchases power from Generation and Marketing at Company developed prices which are not based on market
rates. These intercompany revenues and expenses are eliminated in the consolidated results. <

Total non-fuel operating expenses increased $2.5 million or 1.6%. Administrative and general costs increased $1.9 million or 4.1%
for the period. This increase is primarily due to higher allocated corporate administrative costs of $5.0 million. Consulting expenses
focused on cost control and process improvement initiatives also contributed to the increase. These increases were partially offset
by lower bad debt and collection expense of $3.4 million. By December 2000, the Company had resolved most of the problems
associated with implementing its new billing system. As a result, bad debt expense was significantly lower in 2001. Depreciation
and amortization increased $1.2 million or 3.8% due to a higher depreciable plant base. Transmission and distribution costs
increased $4.3 million or 12.9% primarily due to a non-recurring increase in maintenance to improve reliability for the transmission
and distribution systems. Taxes other than income taxes decreased $1.8 million or 12.5% reflecting favorable audit outcomes by
certain tax authorities and tax planning strategies in 2001. Income taxes, which include taxes associated with interest charges,
decreased $3.1 million or 11.3% due to lower pre-tax income.

Gas

The table below sets forth the operating results for the Gas business segment.

Year Ended December 31,

(In thousands of dollars)

Operating revenues $ 385,418 $ 319,924 $ 65,494
Total cost of energy 251,296 195,334 55,962
Gross margin 134,122 124,590 9,532

Administrative and other 53,093 44,104 8,989
Depreciation and amortization 21,465 19,994 1,471

Transmission and distribution costs 31,072 27,206 3,866
Taxes other than income taxes 6,881 8,502 (1,621)
Income taxes 3,881 5,680 (1,799)
Total non-fuel operating expenses 116,392 105,486 10,906
Operating income $ 17,730 $ 19,104 $ (1,374)

Operating revenues increased $65.5 million or 20.5% for the period to $385.4 million. The Company purchases natural gas in the
open market and resells it at cost to its distribution customers. As a result, increased gas revenues driven by increased gas costs do
not impact the Company’s gross margin or earnings. The revenue increase was driven primarily by a 17.6% increase in average gas
prices in the first half of 2001, resulting from increased market demand. In addition, a 3.1% volume increase and a gas rate increase,
which became effective October 30, 2000 contributed to the increase. The gas rate increase added $7.8 million of revenue.
Transportation volume increased 14.5% or $6.0 million. This growth was primarily attributed to gas transportation customers whose
increased demand was driven by the strong power market in the Western United States during the first half of 2001. Approximately
$28.1 million of gas revenue in 2001 was attributable to sales to the Company’s Generation and Marketing Operations.
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The following table shows sales by customer class:

Generation and Marketing Sales (Megawatt hours)

Year Ended December 31,

Intersegment sales 7,255,297 7,088,943
Long-term contract 1,463,031 330,003

Other merchant sales 11,114,069 12,022,125
: 19,832,397 19,441,071

The gross margin, or operating revenues minus cost of energy sold, increased $141.7 million of 843.6%. The Company's margin benefits
significantly from rising gas prices as most of the Company's generation portfolio is fueled by stable priced fuel sources, such as
coal and uranium. As the increase in gas prices puts upward pressure on electricity prices, the profitability of the Company's stable low-
cost generation increases significantly. Margin also benefited from the Company'’s power marketing activities. The Company buys
and then resells electricity in the market generating incremental margin by taking advantage of price changes in the ele;ﬁtricity sales
market. In addition, the Company also tailors electric deliveries for its wholesale customers creating incremental margin
opportunities. Generally, as market prices decline, marketing volumes rise supporting margin levels in lower price electric markets.
These higher margins were partially offset by an unfavorable change in-the mark-to-market position of ythe‘ marketing portfolio of
$21.0 million year-over-year ($25.8 miltion loss in 2001 versus $4.8 million loss in 2000)-as the Western power market deterioration
in the latter half of 2001 resulted in a reduction of the Company’s merchant energy portfolio. ‘ : -

Total non-fuel opérating expenses increased $69.6 million or 28.2%. Administrative and general costs inCreasgdtT-.B million. or
5.6% for the period. This increase is primarily due to higher allocated corporate administrative costs of $5.4 million and higher
power marketing expenses of $1.0 million mainly for additional incentive bonuses and consulting fees and other expenses of $0.6
million related to business development and process improvemerit. This increase was partially offset by lower year-over-year
Generation and Marketing business development costs of $4.5 million due to significant costs related to the acquisition of a long-term
wholesale customer. Energy production costs increased $12.4 million or 9.0% for the year. The increase is primarily due to higher
maintenance costs of $7.9 million in 2001 resulting from scheduled and unscheduled outages at PVNGS, SJGS and Reeves
Generating Station (“Reeves”), additional incentive bonuses of $0.5 million at SJGS, and increased operations costs of $1.2 million
for generation at Reeves, one of the Company's gas generation facilities, which has a higher cost of production than ‘the Company's
coal and nuclear facilities. This increase was partially offset by lower maintenance costs of $1.3 million at Four Comers.as a result
of decreased outage time. A significant unscheduled outage occurred in the fall of 2001 at SJGS, which resulted in higher costs of
$2.3 million in 2001. The Company tack advaritage of the outage to accelerate its outage scheduled for the spring of 2002. As a
result, maintenance costs and the related lost market potential of the accelerated outage was avoided in the spring of 2002.
Depreciation and -amortization increased $1.2 million or 2.9% for the period due to a higher depreciable plant base. Taxes other
than income taxes decreased $2.6 million or 22.6% as a result of favorable audit outcomes by ceértain tax authorities. Income taxes,
which include taxes for interest charges, increased $56.7 million or 242.2% due to an increase in pre-tax income.




Unregulated Businesses

In July 2001, the Board of Directors of Avistar decided to wind down all unregulated operations except for Avistar's
Reliadigm business unit, which provides maintenance solutions and technologies to the electric power industry. Avistar had previously
divested itself of its Energy Partners business unit and liquidated Axon Field Services and Pathways Integration. This divestiture was
largely in response to market disruptions caused by the California energy crisis. In addition, the transfer of operation of the Sangre
de Cristo Water Company to the City of Santa Fe was completed in the third quarter of 2001. All remaining non-Reliadigm investments
were written-off with the exception of Avistar's investment in Nth Power, an energy related venture capital fund. These
write-downs reflect the significant decline in the technology market and bankruptcy of these investees. The Company recorded
non-operating charges of $13.1 million to reflect these activities and the impairment of its Avistar investments.

Due to the cessation of much of Avistar's historic operations, business activity declined significantly. Revenues decreased 30.8%
for the period to $1.5 million. Operating losses for Avistar decreased from $4.6 million in 2000 to $4.2 million in 2001 primarily due
to decreased costs as a result of the shutdown of certain operations. In January 2002, Avistar was transferred by way of a dividend
to Holding Company by PNM.

Corporate

Corporate administrative and general costs, which represent costs that are driven exclusively by corporate-level activities,
increased $13.3 million or 16.8% for the period to $92.4 million. This increase was due to increased pension and post-retirement
benefits expense of $9.9 million and higher legal costs of $0.8 million associated with routine business operations.

Other Non-Operating Costs

Other income decreased $14.1 million for the year. In 2000, the Company recognized a gain of $13.8 million related to the settfement
of a lawsuit.

Other deductions increased $55.3 million for the year. In 2001, the Company recorded charges of $13.1 million to write-off certain
permanently impaired Avistar investments, $13.0 million of non-recoverable coal mine decommissioning costs previously established
as a regulatory asset, non-recoverable regulatory costs of $11.1 million, a donation of $5.0 million to the PNM Foundation and a
charge of $18.0 million related to the Company's terminated acquisition of Western Resources. In 2000, the Company recognized
gains of $4.5 million for the reversal of certain reserves associated with the resolution of two gas rate claims and $2.4 million related
to the Company’s hedge of certain non-qualified retirement plan trust assets. In addition, in 2000, the Company recorded charges
of $12.5 million related to the Company’s terminated acquisition of Western Resources.

Income Taxes

The Company’s consolidated income tax expense was $81.1 million in the twelve months ended December 31, 2001, an.increase
of $6.7 million for the year. This increase was due to higher earnings in 2001. The Company’s effective income tax rates for the years
ended 2001 and 2000 were 35.02% and 42.41%, respectively. In 2001, the Company determined that $6.6 million of valuation
allowances taken against certain income tax related regulatory assets were no longer required due to changes in the evaluation of
its regulatory strategy in light of the holding company filing in May 2001. In 2000, when the allowance was established, management
believed these income-tax-related regulatory assets would not be recoverable based on the probable regulatory outcome of industry
restructuring in New Mexico. Currently, management fully expects to recover these costs in future rate cases, a situation that was
not possible prior to the delay of open access in New Mexico. Excluding the impact of the valuation reserve changes, the Company's
effective income tax rates for the years ended 2001 and 2000 were 37.85% and 38.67%, respectively. The decrease in the effective
rate was primarily due to the favorable tax treatment received on 2001 equity earnings from a passive investment.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Th’g prepa'l;a‘_tjdn of ﬁnancnal étéfemehfs in éccordance with GAAP requires that managémeht select and apply accounting policies

that best provide the framework to report the Company’s results of operationis and financial position. The selection and application

_ of thase policies require management to make difficult subjective or complex judgments concerning reported amounts of revenue

ring the reporting F‘igriod :'a“nd~'the-tép¢&‘ed amounts of assets and .'l“iabiljiti_é\s'«a’t the date of the financial statements.
 and unicertainties inherent in this process affect the application of those policies. As & fesult, there exists the likelihood

~ that materially different amounts would be reported under different conditions or using different assumptions. Management has

identified the qulbwihg -gt:q'o_uhtihg policies that it deems critical to the portrayal offth§~’Cprﬁpany’s financial condition and results

’ ;ahd?t‘hat ihvolyé"signiﬁcant_subjectiyity;' Management believes that its selection and application of these policies best represent the
- operating results and financial position of the Company. The following discussion provides information on the processes utilized by

management in making judgments and assumptions as they apply to its critical accounting policies.

Revenue Recognition’

| Unbilled Utity Rovenwes s |
o Z-’ReVénu»e's're!a‘téd to 'the‘séle:‘OfVeﬁergy‘ ére,'geherally ,recorded,when sérﬁ?ce is rendered brf-‘ ene‘rg‘y‘;is délivéred‘fco customers.
‘However, the determination of the energy sales to individual customers is based on the reading of their meters, which occurs on a

systematic basis throughout the month, At the end of each month, amounts of energy delivered to customers since the date of the

 last meter reading are estimated and the comresponding unbilled revenue is estimated. The cycle meter reading results in unbilled

tween the date of the last meter reading in a particular month and the end of the month, This unbilled revenue is
onth based on the daily generation volumes, estimated customer usage by class, weather factors, line losses and
mer rates based on regression analysis reflecting significant historical trends and experience. -

consumptio

- The Company purchases gas on behalf of sales service customers while other marketers or producers purchase gas on behalf of
tranisportation service customers. The Company collects a cost of service revenue for the transportation, delivery, and customer service

_'provided to these customers. Sales-service tariffs are subject to the terms of the Purchase Gas Adjustments Clause ("PGAC") while

transportation service customers are metered and billed on the last day of the month. Therefore, the Company estimates unbilled

decatherms and cost of service revenues for sales service customers only.

 The unbilled decatherms are based on consumption estimates and the a'ssociatedkcc’ast‘ of service revenue for the period. A cycle

bill contains an amount for both the current period's consumption and the prior period's consumption. The unbilled portion that is

recorded is estimated as a percentage of the next month's budgeted c;yclé billing; These budgets are prepared using historical
data adjusted for known trends, including prior period consumption. Adjustments are also made to the budgeted cycle billings for

weather variations above or below normal, customer. growth, and any pricing changes by customer rate and revenue class. Any

. diﬁe&erﬁ;ces between the estimate and the actual ¢ycle billings are recorded in-the month bifled. .~ ..

Unbilled Wholesale Power Marketing Re._\)f(:hues\ -

Wholesale pdwer marketihg‘re,venues. are recognized in the month the énérgyis delivered to the customer and are based on the

' actual amounts supplied to the customer. However, in accordance with the Western Systems Power Pool contract, these revenues

are billed in the'month subsequent to their delivery. Consequently, wholesale power marketing revenues for the last month in any

 reporting period are unbilled when reported. - -

Accried uribilled uﬁlity-révénﬁes and uhbilled wholésale 'pQWér‘markéﬁng: révenues'af.e combined and specifically identified in

- the consolidated balance sheets.
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Regulatory Assets and Llabohttes ‘

snons m iﬁ ﬂnancral statements

The accounting rules for rate—regulated entities: requue a company to reﬂect the effects of reguiatory d
; in Types of Regulation”

pursuant to Statement of Financial. Accoun ng Standards, No 71 “"Accounting

("SFAS 71"). In accordance with these accounting rules, the Company od
recorded certain liabilities for amounts to be-returned to. retasl :us Y ers
and the Federal Energy Regula&:ory CommnSs (“FERC") Substantlaily all
are reflected in rates ‘charged to. retail customers ' )
concludes that the: recovery of egulatory asset.is no longer probable due to. ang
of competition: or other. factors, t be recorded #sa charge to-
Company continually. assesses W
applicable regulatory environment cha ges, re '
future regulatory decisions and theur rm s y-to r_ecover costs, and the
status of any deregulation’ leg:slation' : - G S o

mg To the extent that fanagement
tment; the - effects
recov ry is IS no longer probable The
dermg factors such as

9, for the generatnon portion of its
cto .1999 ("Restructurmg Act")

The Company dnscontmued the apphcatlon of regulatory accountmg as of December‘&l
business effective with the- passage in-New' Mexico. of the Electnc Uﬂhty lnduetry Restructumg
The Company evaluated these asset “under the same im '
2000, the Company nte iations wi

yp Siabie wires charge In
dmeta 'related regulatory

Senate Bill 266, that delayed open access. Wlth the passage o‘F 1
in 2001 the Company reversed the 2000 valuation allowance as.it was determined th‘ i
the evaluation of the: Companys regu%atory strategy in hg ht of the. bolding company i

In August 2001 the Company sngned an. agreement wuth San Juan Coal Company SJCC )a i
(“Tucson”) to replace two surface mining: operat:ons with.a single unde@raund miqe located:ad]
negotiations for the new coal contract; the Company r recorded-2 regulatory asset in 1999 for ‘ nt
the surface mining operation This regulatory ‘assetwas anticnpated to be. recovered threug, ont ypas abte w:res charge discussed
above. As the settlement’ discuss:ons progreSsed, it became clear that 2 pomon of : 7_,tahzed by the Company for
decommissioning the coal mine would ot be. collectible. As & result; the Company was- unable;t “defer this portion. of coal mine
decommissioning costs as.a regulatary asset for futuire recovery through regulated rates. Therefore, in 200 e Company. wrote-off
$13 million for the partion of coal mine decommrssmmng costs associated with the Company's FERC ﬁrm reqmrements customers and
a portion of SJGS Unit 4. In addition, the Company wrote-off $11.1 million of additional regulator assets of whnch $8.1 million related

to non-recoverable transition costs nd' mill fo ‘ther non-recoverable regutatory,assets

On October 10, 2002, the Company 2 other pames signed the. “Global Electric A
rate path for: the Company s New Mexico: risdictional customers’ beginmn\ ptem| 2003. The Global Electric
Agreement also seeks to repeal the Restructurmg Act. The Company. will re-app AS 7 o Generatton and Marketing
Operations during the first quarter of 2003 as the ‘Global Electric Agreement was, approved by the PRC on January 28, 2003. In
connection with the Global Electric Agreement, the Company has agreed to. forego recovery of the transition costs incurred to date.
The forgone transition costs include: professndna! fees, ﬁnancmg costs including underwriting fees; costs’ relating to the transfer of
assets, the cost of management mfofmatvon system changes including billing system changes, and pubhc and customer communication
costs. The Company: willincur a one-time charge of $16.7 million for the non-recoverable transition costs in the first quarter of 2003,
As the Company’s « electric rates are fixed, the 0pportumty to-recover mcveased costs. and the costs of new investment in facilities
through rates during the five-year rate fteeze penod is also limited. The Company will continue to assess the recoverability of its
regulatory assets. If- future recovery ‘of costs ceases ta be probabie, ‘the’ Company would be requlred to record a charge for the
portion of the costs that were not recoverab[e in current penod earmngsh :

that prowdes for a five-year
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Asset Impairment

The Company evaluates its tangible long-lived assets for impairment whenever indicators of impairment exist pursuant to
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived
Assets to be Disposed of” (“SFAS 144"). These potential impairment triggers would include fluctuating market conditions as a result
of industry deregulation; planned and scheduled customer purchase commitments; future market penetration; customer growth;
fluctuating market prices (resulting from changing fuel costs, other economic conditions, etc.); weather patterns, and other market
trends. Accounting rules require that if the sum of the undiscounted expected future cash flows from a company’s asset (without
interest charges that will be recognized as expenses when incurred), is less than the carrying value of the asset, an asset impairment
must be recognized in the financial statements. The amount of impairment recognized is calculated by subtracting the fair value of
the asset from the carrying value of the asset.

Impairment testing for the Company’s power generation assets is done in two parts: those power generation assets used to supply
New Mexico retail customer needs (evaluated as one group) and those used to supply wholesale market needs (evaluated as another
group). Management's assumptions about future prices, volumes, and other market trends in the wholesale electricity market have
fluctuated in the past and are expected to continue to be volatile. A significant adverse change in these assumptions may result in
an impairment of the Company’s power generation assets. Please note that the assumptions inherent in the Company’s analysis of
asset impairment are inter-dependent. Changes in any one assumption is a simplified view which-attempts to give the reader an
understanding of the sensitivities affecting the Company’s earnings. If market prices were to decrease 22% below the Company’s
projected average market price of $34/MWh, the Company may be required to recognize a charge to earnings for the related asset
impairment in accordance with SFAS 144, ‘

Pension and Other Post-retirement Benefits

The Company and its subsidiaries maintain a qualified defined benefit pension plan (the “Plan"), which covers eligible non-union
and union employees including officers. The Plan was frozen at the end of 1997 to new participants, salary levels and benefits. The
Company’s policy is to fund actuarially-determined contributions.

The Company’s income for its Plan approximated $1.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2002, and is calculated based
upon a number of actuarial assumptions, including an expected long-term rate of return on the Plan assets of 9.0%. in developing
the expected long-term rate of return assumption, the Company evaluated input from its actuaries, including their review of asset
class return expectations as well as long-term inflation assumptions. This long-term rate of return assumption compares to the
historical 10-year compounded return of 8.6% through the end of December 2002. The expected long-term rate of return on the
Plan assets is based on an asset allocation assumption of 65% with equity managers, 25% with fixed income managers, and 10%
with alternative investments that are primarily real estate and timber. Because of market fluctuation, the Plan’s actual asset allocation
as of December 31, 2002 was 63% with equity managers, 27% with fixed income managers, and 10% with alternative investments. The
Company reviews the actual asset allocation and periodically rebalances the asset allocation to the targeted allocation. The
Company continues to believe that 9.0% is a reasonable long-term rate of return on the Plan's assets, despite the recent market
downturn in which the Plan assets had an actual loss of 8.3% for the twelve months ended December 31, 2002. The Company will
continue to evaluate its actuarial assumptions, including expected rate of return, at least annually, and will adjust as necessary.

The Company bases its determination of pension expense or income on a market-related valuation of assets, which reduces
year-to-year volatility. If investment return is outside a range-of 5% to 13% (expected long-term rate of return plus or minus 4%),
this market-related valuation recognizes the portion of return that is outside the range over a five year period from the year in which
the return occurs. Since the market-related value of assets recognizes the portion of return that is outside the range over a five-year
period, the future value of assets will be impacted as previously deferred returns are recorded.

The discount rate that the Company utilizes for determining future pension obligations is based on a review of long-term high-
grade bonds. The discount rate determined on this basis has decreased to 6.75% at September 30, 2002 from 7.50% at September
30, 2001. Based on an expected rate of return on the Plan assets of 9.0%, a discount rate of 6.75% and various other assumptions,
it is estimated that the pension expense for the Plan will approximate $3.2 million in fiscal year 2003 and $3.8 million in fiscal year
2004. Future actual pension income or expense will depend on future investment performance, changes in future discount rates
and various other factors related to the populations participating in our pension plans.

Lowering the Plan’s expected long-term rate of return on pension assets by 0.5% (from 9% to 8.5%) would have lowered pension
income for fiscal 2002 by approximately $1.9 million. Lowering the discount rate by 0.5% would have lowered pension income for
fiscal year 2002 by approximately $200,000.

The value of the Plan assets has decreased from $339.7 million at September 30, 2001 to $325.1 million at September 30, 2002
including $26.1 million of contributions during 2002. The Company expects to make $20 million in contributions for the 2003 plan
year. These contributions are expected to help the Company avoid potential actions of the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation
for under-funded plans including higher insurance premiums and notification to participants of the under-funded plan status.
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! Thé:(:gr%;:_:_»apy is mvolved i‘ri’?vai.\r‘lbus legéf~ 'Qrocéeding's in the normal course of business. The associated legal costs for these legal

- matters are accrued when incurred. it is also the Company’s policy to accrie for legal costs expected to be incurred in connection

. with: Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 5 "Accounting for Contingencies” ("SFAS 5) Jegal matters when it is probable

: that a SFAS 5 liébi!ity has been.incurred and.the amount of expected legal costs to be:incurred is reasonably estimable. These
. estimates include costs for external counsel and professional fees. TR o

g .f’;’ See *Q titative and Qualitative bpifsclos‘u'réf Abou{/Méfke_t ,Risk— Interest Rate Risk and ,Fin_én_cial Instruments” for

- distussion regarding the Company’s accounting policies and sensitivity analysis for the Company’s financial instruments and derivative

- energy and other derivative contracts. See also “Planned Financing Activities” below for. additional discussion regarding the
- Company’s accounting palicies for forward interest swaps. ' S - E

s At Decerhser 31,2002theCompanyhad cashand shbrt—terrﬁ cash investments of $833rmlhon compared to $179.2 million in

.cash and short-term and long-térm cash investments at December 31, 2001. Certain long-term investments have been reclassified
- s short-term to reflect the Company's liquidity needs to fund certain construction projects in 2002.

Cash provaded fromoperatmg activitiesfqr thé‘;year et{dgd_bécéﬁibeg 31, 2002was $97V.3:mili:iqn ‘comp’ared to cash provided by

operating activities of $327.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. This decrease was primarily the result of a decline in

 operating income due to the deterioration of wholesale market conditions. Also, contributing to the decrease was a payment of
7 $36.0 million for the termination of the surface coal mine contract, the Company’s $26.1 million contribution to its pension and
. post-retirement benefit plans and a payment of $23.2 million to secure a long-term wholesale contract. In addition, the Company
- did riot make its first quarter 2001 ‘estimated federal income tax payment of $32.0 million until January 2002 because of an extension
. granted by the IRS to taxpayers in several counties in New Mexico as a result of wildfires in 2000. These non-recurring payments
reduced operating cash flows below historical levels. RN ’

Cash used for investing activities was $200.4 million in 2002 compared to $407.0 ﬁ\illiph in 2001. Cash used for investing activities
includes construction expenditures for new generating plants of $67.4 million in 2002 compared to $70.9 million in 2001. Payments
.. for combustion turbines not yet included in plant were $31.3 million in 2002 compared to $32.6'million in 2001. In addition, cash

used for investing in 2001 includes the purchase of short-term and long-term investments of $150.0 million. The change in cash

used for investing activities was partially offset by the redemption of short-term investments of $76.6 million in 2002. Expenditures

. in 2001 reflect the acquisition of certain transmission assets and other related investing activities of $13.9 million.

~Cash generated by ﬁn_antihg“éctivities was $78.5 millién in 2002 qorriparea to $0.4 million in 2001. Financing activities in 2002

- were primarily short-term borrowings of $115.0 million compared to$35.0 million in 2001 for liquidity reasons; partially offset by an

- 8% increase in cash payments for common stock dividends. S R

Capital Requirements - & . v : CEa

Tdtal'capital eq&irémenté include cdnstrucgic’m expenditures as well as other major capital requirements.and cash dividend requirements

. for both .common and preferred stock. The main facus of the Company’s current construction program -is'upgrading generation

systems, upgrading and expanding the electric andgas transmission and distribution systems, -and purchasing nuclear fuel. To
~_preserve a strong financial position, the. Company announced in 2002 its plans to eliminate capital expenditures for previously planned

- generation expansion until market conditions warrant further investment. Projections for total capital requirements for 2003 are $176

o miltion: and?f;f;:)rojec_:ti‘Ons for - construction expenditures for 2003 are $156 million including ‘remaining: payments on the

+ combustion turbines discussed befow. For 2003-2007 projections, total capital requirements are $800 million and construction

expenditures are $708 million. These estimates are under continuing review and subject to on-going adjustment. -
PNM had pfévileslyVCOmmiue:c{ to purchase five combustion turbines for a total cost of $151.3 million. The turbines are for power
generation plants with an estimated cost of construction of approximately $370 miflion over the next five years depending on market

. conditions. PNM has expended $225 million as of December 31, 2002 of which $144 million was for equipment purchases. On June
27, 2002, Lordsburg, an 80 MW natural gas fired plart, became fully operational and commenced serving the wholesale power market.

- Afton, a 141 MW simple cycle gas turbine, became fully Qper_étional on December 4, 2002. These plants are part of the Company's
k :ongoing cqmpét?tive,; sfcrafcegy of increasing generation capacity. over time 16 serve incréasing retail load, sales under long-term

. contracts and other merchant sales. These plants were not originally planned to serve New Mexico retail customers and therefore

are not currently, included in the rate base. However, it is possible that these plants may be needed in the future to serve the growing
retail load. If so, thesé"p\lants‘ will have to be certified by the PRC and would then be included in the rate base.
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In 2002, the Company utilized cash generated from operations, cash on hand, as well as its liquidity arrangen’n_ehts“_t’o.;,o:y;er tts " S
construction commitments. The Company anticipates that internal cash generation and current debt capacity will be sufficient to
meet all its capital requirements for the years 2003 through 2007. To cover the difference in the amounts and timing of cash

generation and cash requirements, the Company intends to use short-term borrowings under its current and future liquidityé

Liquidity D :
As of February 28, 2003, PNM had $215 million of liquidity arrangements in addition to $76 million of cash. The liquidity arrangemen‘cs o
consist of $195 million from an unsecured revolving credit facility (“Credit Facility”) and $20 million in loca! lines of credit:PNM
entered into a new revolving credit facility on December 19, 2002, which increased borrowing capacity from $150 million-to $195 e
million. This facility will mature December 18, 2003. There were $170 million in borrowings against the Credit Facility as of February = k
28, 2003. In addition, the Holding Company has $15 million in local lines of credit. ' : e

The Company's ability, if required, to access the capital markets at a reasonable cost and to provide for other capital needs is
largely dependent upon its ability to'earn a fair return on equity, results of operations, credit ratings, regulatory approvals and firancial x
and wholesale market conditions. Financing flexibility is enhanced by providing a high percentage of total capital requirements fr
internal sources and having the ability, if necessary, to issue Jong-term securities, and to obtain short-term credit. -~

PNM's credit outlook is considered stable by Moody's. Investor Services, Inc. ("Moody's”) and Standard énql P

Services (“S&P") and positive by Fitch, Inc. ("Fitch”). The Company is committed to maintaining or improving its inve:
ratings. S&P currently rates PNM's senior unsecured notes ("SUNs") and its Eastern interconnection Project (f’EtPf’)';sen;io
debt “BBB-" and its preferred stock “BB". Moody's rates PNM:’s SUNs and senior unsecured pollution control revenue |
and preferred stock “Ba1”. The EIP senior secured debt is also rated “Bal". Fitch rates PNM's SUNs and senior unsecu

control revenue bonds “BBB-,” PNM’s EIP lease obligation "BB+" and PNM’s preferred stock "BB-." Inves‘t‘grs( are
that.a security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities, that it may be subject to révisibh_-

any time by the assigning rating organization, and that each rating should be evaluated independently of any other

Long-term Obligations and Commitments :
The following tableé show the Company’s long-term obligations and commitments as of December.31, 2002 B

Payments Due (in thousands)

Contractual Obligations Total Less than 1 year 2-3 years 4.5 years
Short-Term Debt (a) $ 150,000 $ 150,000 $ - $ -
Long-Term Debt - ‘ 980,092 1,852 . 272,728 5,260
Operating Leases 446,973 28,216 . 58,216 62,391
Purchased Power Agreement 213,19 ) 23,889 48,217 : 34,704
Coal Contract (b) 1,496,838 106,048 205,229 ) 183,252
Total Contractual Cash : R
Obligations $3,287,094 $ 310,005 $ 584,390 $ 285,607 $ 2,107_}0_9 ‘

(a) Represents the actual outstanding balance of the Credit Facility as of December 31, 2002, . ) o
(b) Assumes deliveries under. the Coal Contract. If no deliveries are made, certain minimum payments may be required under the Coal Con

Amount of Commitmant Expiration Per Perlod (In thousands)

Other Commerclal Commitments Total
Amounts . o
Committed 1 year 2-3 years 4-S years “UAfRer B yas)
Short-Term Debt () $ 41,500 $ 41,500 $ - $ - B T
Local Lines of Credit 35,000 35,000 $ - $ - N T
Letters of Credit 5,700 5,700 $ - $ - S
Total Commercial Commitments $ 82,200 $ 82,200 $ - $ - g

(c) Represents the unused borrowing capacity of the Credit Facility less outstanding letters of credit of $3.5 million as of December 31,_2002 2

PNM leases interests in Units 1 and 2 of PVNGS, certain transmission facilities, office buildings and otherkequipm‘ent'uhdeﬁ’o_befaﬁng :
leases. The lease expense for PUNGS is $66.3 million per year over base lease terms expiring in 2015 and 2016. In 1998, PNM :
established PVNGS Capital Trust (“Capital Trust”).for the purpose of acquiring all the debt underlying the PVNGS leases: NM
consolidates Capital Trust in its consolidated financial statements. The purchase was funded with the proceeds fijom the iséuiahce
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of $435 million of SUNs, which were foaned to Capital Trust. Capital Trust then acquired and now holds the debt component of the
PVNGS leases. For legal and regulatory reasons, the PYNGS lease payment continues to be recorded and paid gross with the debt
component of the payment returned to PNM via Capital Trust. As a result, the net cash outflows for the PYNGS lease payment were
$13.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. The table above reflects the net lease payment.

PNM's other significant operating lease obligations include the EIP, a leased interest in transmission line with annual lease payments
of $2.8 million (see “Planned Financing Activities” below), and an operating lease for the entire output of Delta, a gas fired generating
plant in Albuquerque, New Mexico, with imputed annual lease payments of $6.0 million.

The Company's off-balance sheet obligations are limited to PNM's operating leases and certain financial instruments related to
the purchase and sale of energy (see below). The present value of PNM’s operating lease obligations for PYNGS Units 1 and 2, EIP
and the Delta operating lease was $196 million as of December 31, 2002.

PNM has entered into various long-term Purchase Power Agreements ("PPAs") obligating it to buy electricity for aggregate fixed
payments of $213.2 million plus the cost of production and a return. These contracts expire December 2006 through July 2010. in
addition, PNM is obligated to sell electricity for $85.2 million in fixed payments plus the cost of production and a return. These
contracts expire December 2003 through June 2010. PNM's marketing portfolio as of December 31, 2002 included open contract
positions to buy $59.7 million of electricity and to sell $56.1 million of electricity. In addition, PNM had open forward positions
classified as normal sales of electricity under the derivative accounting rules of $140.7 million and normal purchases of electricity of
$98.9 million.

PNM contracts for the purchase of gas to serve its retail customers. These contracts are short-term in nature, supplying the gas
needs for the current heating season and the following off-season months. The price of gas is a pass-through, whereby PNM recovers
100% of its cost of gas.

Contingent Provisions of Certain Obligations

The Holding Company and PNM have a number of debt obligations and other contractual commitments that contain contingent
provisions. Some of these, if triggered, could affect the liquidity of the Company. The Holding Company or PNM could be required
to provide security, immediately pay outstanding obligations or be prevented from drawing on unused capacity under certain credit
agreements if the contingent requirements were to be triggered. The most significant consequences resulting from these contingent
requirements are detailed in the discussion below.

PNM's master purchase agreement for the procurement of gas for its retail customers contains a contingent requirement that
could require PNM to provide security for its gas purchase obligations if the seller were to reasonably believe that PNM was unable
to fulfill its payment obligations under the agreement.

The master agreement forthe sale of electricity in the Western Systems Power Pool ("WSPP") contains a contingent requirement
that could require PNM to provide security if its debt were to fall below investment grade rating. The WSPP agreement also contains
a contingent requirement, commonly called a material adverse change ("MAC") provision, which could require PNM to provide
security if a material adverse change in its financial condition or operations were to occur.

PNM's committed Credit Facility contains a “ratings trigger.” If PNM is downgraded or upgraded by the ratings agencies, the
result would be an increase or decrease in interest cost, respectively. PNM's committed Credit Facility contains a MAC provision
which, if triggered, could prevent PNM from drawing on its unused capacity under the Credit Facility. In addition, the Credit Facility
contains a contingent requirement that requires PNM to maintain a debt-to-capital ratio, inclusive of off-balance sheet debt, of less
than 65% as well as maintenance of an earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA")/interest coverage
ratio of three times. If PNM's debt-to-capital ratio, inclusive of off-balance sheet debt, were to exceed 65% or its interest coverage
ratio falls below 3.0, PNM could be required to repay all borrowings under the Credit Facility, be prevented from drawing on the
unused capacity under the Credit Facility, and be required to provide security for all outstanding letters of credit issued under the
Credit Facility. At December 31, 2002, PNM had $5.7 million of letters of credit outstanding. The outstanding balance of the Credit
Facility at December 31, 2002 was $150.0 million.

if a contingent requirement were to be triggered under the Credit Facility resulting in an acceleration of the outstanding loans
under the Credit Facility, a cross-default provision in the PVNGS leases could occur if the accelerated amount is not paid. If a
cross-default provision is triggered, the lessors have the ability to accelerate their rights under the leases, including acceleration of
all future lease payments.

Planned Financing Activities

As of December 31, 2002, PNM has $268.4 million of long-term debt that matures in August 2005 excluding sinking fund
payments related to EIP secured lease bonds. All other long-term debt of PNM matures in 2016 or later. The Company could enter
into other long-term financings for the purpose of strengthening its balance sheet, funding growth and reducing its cost of capital.

39




1-7‘“‘ SRR .‘.l: Sndagn . LA e ; e

? 5 @lﬁ@%&ﬁiiﬁ”‘i AN AN %i?i‘iiﬁ
0 £33
g §

L CONDITION AND RESLL

; N
ptes]

: evaluate ﬂs ir lvestment and debt retvrement Opt\ons to optlmlze its ﬁnancnng stmtegy and eammgs potential.
1 ‘ rtgage. The amount of SUNs that may be issued is not limited
of PNM ﬁnancnal unstruments and regulatory agreements

ere callable at a pre, ‘urn begmmng December 15,2002,
le at. August 2003, PNM intends to refinance: these bonds, assuming
, does not exceed the current interest rate of the bonds, and has hedged the entire planned
reguilatory pproval to refund thetex—exempt bohds on’ October 29, 2002 This approval is
e of current low interest rates, PNM entered i m:o five forward starting interest rate
quart  of 2002. PNM: desrgnated these swaps as. cash ﬂow hedges. The hedged
' cash ﬂows related to ge terest rates expected for the
: ne for PNM's and the mdustry s

. denvatwe accountmg

i ffect earmnge Any hedge i v
2002, PNM recognized $0.4 million of hedge lneffectlveness
prommately $1 84 mllllon

y ar ended Decem'be, 31
‘ these der sative ﬁnancsal mstrumenis was 3p

t require any upfront premium and captureskchanges in'the
rate aswell as the underlylng benchmark “The five forward starting intere
82.0 l"lOﬂ rThere were no fees on e

ization”) to reduce the amount of debt outsﬁnding under the Credlt Faclity an to raise ca

Nt 'and other capital requarements The total capaclty, or maximum that"could be borrowed under the
Jinthe proposed transaction, PNM would self its: acéounits receivables from time to time.
ed thrs request ¢ DeCember 17 2002 The Company expects to enter lnto this transactlon in Maech 2003.

) € exercnse its. early. buyout optlon related to ns 60% ownership interest
early buyout option; PNM will 7 retlre the related $26.2 million
mptions to be. distributed on February 24, 2003, calling the
lly, ipany Ulred the: remammg $12.5 mitli of:pubhcly*traded EIP Secured Facility

. e red‘and ownershlp of the related lease debt rs expected to be transferred to PNM, Subjed to

‘dmdend pohcy The declaratron of common dwudends is dependent
blllty the Holdl ‘{Ccmpanys subsldlarles to pay dividends: Currently, PNM is the
ds. As part of the order approving the formation of the Helding Company, the PRC
s on. e ability of PNM to pay dmdands to the Holding Company.. ‘PNM-¢cannot pay dividends that will
go below lnvestment grader and PNM cannot pay dividends in any. year, as determined on a rolling
ok 1 amings for that year wﬂ:hout prior PRC approval In January 2003, with the signing of the Global

: Eleétrlc Agree e PRC. modlﬁed the PNM dividend’ restnctmn to allow PNM to dividend. future equity contributions made by
2 the Holdmg Company back to the Holding Company Addi tlonally, PNM has various: fmancnal covenants, whuch lnmnt the transfer of
' h l wndends or other means. , :

of fhe Holdmg Company to declare dwldends is dependent upon the extent to whlch cash flows wil support

tabilit ‘of earnings, its financial circumstances and performance, the effect of regulatory decisions and legislative
wth- plans, the related capltal requrrements, standard business consrderatlons and market and economic




i 4.

PR

Conslstent wnth the PRC‘s holdmg company order, PNM paid dividends of $127 0 million to the Holding Company on December

31,2001, On March 4, 2002, the PNM Board of Directors declared a dividenid of $5.5 million, which was paid-on March 19, 2002.
‘On:June 10, -2002, the PNM Board of Directors declared a dividend of $24.7 million, which was paid.on June 28, 2002.

On February 18,.2003, the Holdmg Company’s Board of Directors approved a 4.5% i lncrease in the common stock dividend. The
increase ralsed the quarterly dlwdend to $O 23 per share for-an mdlcated annual dividend of $O 92 per share.

3 Caprtal Structure

The Companys caprtahzatlon mcludmg current matuntnes of long-term debt at December 31, 2002 and 2001 are shown below:

“Common Equity - oa92% 50.8%

Preferred Stock -~ 07 .06
'Long-term Debt “+. . 50.1 48.6 -

.Total Capstahzatlon* .7 100.0% - 100.0%

: *Total capvtahzatton does not mdude as debt. the present value of PNM's. operating lease’ obllgatuons for PVNGS Units 1 and 2,
EIP and the Delta operatmg lease, whnch was $196 mrlhon as of December 31, 2002 and $224 miltion as of December 31, 2001.

- ; OTHER ISSUES FAOING THE CDMPMY HESTHUCTURIHG THE ELECTIIIG U‘I'ILITY INDUSTHY

Staie‘f. RETER T .
“ta Apnl 1999‘the New Mexlco Electnc Utlhty Industry Restructurmg Act of 1999 ("Restructunng Act") was enacted into law. The

Restructunng Act opens the state’s electric power market to customer choice. In March 2001, amendments to the Restructuring Act

were passed which delayed the original implementation dates by approximately five years, including the requirement for corporate
separation of supply service and energy-related service assets from distribution and transmission service assets. The Restructuring

~/Act, as amended, will give schools, residential and small business custorers the opportunity to choose among competing power

supphers begmnmg in January 2007. Competition would be expanded to'include all customers starting in- July 2007.
‘On October 10, 2002, PNM announced that it had agreed with the PRC Staff, the New Mexico Attorney General, and other

-consumer groups on the Global Electric Agreement that includes agreement to support repeal of a majority of the Restructuring

Act, as amended. The Global Electric Agreement, which mcludes agreement on a five-year rate path, procedures for the Company’s
participation in merchant plant activities and other regulatory.i issues, was approved by the PRC on January 28, 2003. The New Mexico
Legislature is currently in session. Legislation repealing the Restructuring Act, as amended, and: continuing the authorization for
utilities to participate in merchant plant activities for a limited time has been introduced as SB 718.'On February 28, 2003, SB 718
passed the Senate by a vote of 37-2. It is now awaiting action in the House of Representatives. The Company is unable to predict

. atthis time if restructuring will occur as provided in current law or, if so, what form it will take (See “Merchant Plant Filing and Global

Electric. Agreement" below)

* The Restructuring Act, as amended recognized that electric utilities should be permitted a reasonable opportunlty to recover an
appropriate amount of the costs previously incurred in providing electric service to their customers. These stranded costs represent
all costs associated with generation-related assets, currently in rates, in excess of the expected competitive market price over the

: life of those assets and include plant decommissioning costs, regulatory assets, and lease and lease-related costs. Utilities would

be allowed to recover no less than 50% of stranded costs through a non- bypassable charge on all customer bills for five years after
implementation of customer choice. The PRC could authorize a utility to recover up to 100% of its stranded costs if the PRC finds
that recovery of more than 50%: (i) is in the public interest; (i) is necessary to maintain the financial integrity of the public utility; (iii)

is necessary to continue adequate and reliable service; and (iv) will not cause an increase in rates to residential or small business

customers during the transition period. The Restructunng Act, as amended, also allows for the recovery of nuclear decommissioning
costs by means of a separate wires charge over the life of the underlying generation assets. Approximately $135 million of costs

*associated with the power supply and energy services businesses under the Restructuring Act, as amended, were established as
" _regulatory assets. Because of the Companys belief that recovery is probable, these assets continue to be classified as regulatory
~ -assets, -although the Company has discontinued the use of accounting for rate regulated activities. See Note 12 of the notes to

: consohdated fmancaal statements for further: develpments.
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Federal

The 107th Congress adjourned without passing comprehensive energy legislation. Both the House and the Sénate passed energy
legislation but were unable to resolve disagreemenit on a number of provisions during conference committeé discussions. President
Bush has expressed his continuing commitment to his National Energy Policy and has urged Congress to move forward with energy
legislation. Key committee chairs in both the House and the Senate have expressed desires to move quickly.on: a.comprehensive
orif it will be

energy bill. The Company is unable to predict if energy legislation.will be passed or if passed, what form it \\/»v‘i", take,
signed by the President if passed. ' e

MERCHANT PLANT FILING AND GLOBAL ELECTRIC AGREEMENT

Senate Bill (“SB 266"), enacted by the 2001 session of the New Mexico legislature, allowed public utilities 1o “investiin, construct,

acquire or. operate” generating plants not intended to provide retail electric service ("merchant plant”), free of certain otherwise:

applicable regulatory requirements contained in the Public Utility Act. By order entered on March 27, 2001,~;théfPRC~,dend that
these provisions of SB 266 raised issues such as cost allocations for ratemaking, revenue allocations for off;sylslhetﬁ}sa'les, how the
PRC can ensure the utility will meet its duty to provide service when the utility invests in merchant plant, how that plant will be
financed and how transactions between regulated services and merchant plants will be conducted. The PRC initiated proceedings
to address these issues. \ i s s :

In Novemnber 2001, PNM began negotiations with the PRC utility staff and intervenors in order to res'ol})ém‘its;me» ﬁéﬁt‘piént filing

and other matters. Discussions included the future framework for restructuring the electric industry. in NgW;M’exiéounder the .

Restructuring Act, a future retail electric rate path and PNM's. merchant plant filing.

The year-long negotiations ended on October 10, 2002 with the filing of the Global Electric Agreement with the PRC. Th§ Global
Electric Agreement sets a rate path through 2007 and resolves the issues surrounding industry d‘eregulvati’qn' in .NG;WZMe)iico and
PNM’s merchant power strategy. The Global Electric Agreement was signed by PNM, the PRC-Staff, the New'Mgﬁco Attorney
General's Office, the New Mexico Industrial Energy Consumers, the City of Albuquerque; and the University. of New Mexico. The
United States Executive Agencies ("USEA”) subsequently agreed to support the Global Electric Agreement as if they. had signed it.
The Global Electric Agreement aiso provides for the signatories to support passage of legislation to tepeal the Restructuring Act
and concerning merchant plant activities in the New Mexico Legislature. The Gtobal Electric Agreement was approved by the PRC
on January 28, 2003. : G G

Under the Global Electric Agreement, PNM will decrease retail electric rates 6.5% in two phases over the next three years. The
first phase will be a 4.0% decrease, effective September 2003. The second phase will be a further 2.5% decrease from current rate
levels, effective in September 2005. Rates would then be frozen at that level until the end of 2007. The Company expects to achieve
necessary cost savings through additional cost efficiencies and fuel savings. The risks and benefits of all.th!éga‘é electric sales,
inure solely to the Company's shareholders until December 2007. Since the Global Electric Agreement does not provide for a fuel
cost adjustment, the lower fuel costs sought to be captured by shifting to underground mining for the coal supplies at SJGS will
flow through to the Company’s earnings largely offsetting the reduction in retail revenues. = - B e

PNM will be able to seek a general rate adjustment during the rate freeze period if complying with any new or changed environmental
or tax law or regulation, or a new broader application of existing environmental or tax laws or regulations, would compromise its
financial integrity. PNM also is permitted to capitalize the reasonable costs of mandatory renewable energy resources; including an
after:tax cost of capital of 8.64% to be recorded concurrently with the deferral of those costs. =~ il

PNM is authorized to recover in the stipulated rates and future retail rates, its New Mexico jurisdictional share of the decommissioning
costs associated with the San Juan, La Plata and Navajo surface coal mines. PNM is altowed to recover up to $100 million of the
costs, composed of approximately $69 million in surface coal mine reclamation costs, and approximately $31 million of contract
buyout costs, without being subject to prudence challenge by the signatories to the Global Electric Agreement. The costs will be
amortized over 17 years commencing September 1, 2003 and in equal amounts each year thereafter. PNM'clahnﬁ'o‘tj_S'éekbt,b recover
a return on the unamortized reclamation costs, but could seek to recover a return on the unamor"t'i'zed‘ contrégit‘ buyout costs remaining
as of December 31, 2007 in future rate adjustment proceedings. S R S

The stipulated rates also provide for full recovery of nuclear decommissioning costs accrued in accordance with the estimates in
the applicable decommissioning cost study during the rate freeze period for PNM's interests in PVNGS Units 1 and 2. The portion
of SJGS Unit 4 previously treated as-an excluded resource from PNM’s New Mexico retail rates are includ_ed as; angraﬁbn resource
to serve PNM's New Mexico retail and wholesale firm requirements customers’ load. PNM’s contracts to purchase power from
Tri-State, Delta and firm power from Southwestern Public Service Comapny (“SPS") would also be incibdéd,és generation
resources to serve PNM's New Mexico retail and wholesale firm requirements customers’ load until each contract expires under
the Global Electric Agreement. i :




PRC approval or other authorization from the PRC is not required for PNM's merchant plant investment as long as PNM meets
the following conditions: (a} PNM does not invest more than $1.25 billion in merchant plant; (b) PNM has an investment grade credit
rating on a stand-alone basis and on a consolidated basis with the Holding Company; and (c} PNM spends at least $60 million per
year in gas and electric utility, non-merchant plant infrastructure needed to maintain adequate and reliable service. No prior
approval for merchant plant participation would be required and expedited PRC approval would be available for financing of
merchant plant if certain specified financial conditions are met. If PNM’s credit rating on a stand-alone or consolidated basis with
the Holding Company falls below investment grade, however, approvals are needed for new merchant plant projects and for
continuing to participate in merchant plant projects of more than certain doliar value and under certain conditions.

PRC approval is not required for PNM to transfer any part of its interests in merchant plant or PVNGS Unit 3 from time to time to
any other legal entity, provided that the following conditions are met: (a) PNM's debt to capital ratio will not exceed 65% after giving
effect to the transfer and (b) PNM’s investment grade status on a stand-alone basis and on a consolidated basis with the Holding
Company will not be impaired by the transfer of merchant plant or PYNGS Unit 3 at the time of transfer.

PNM further agreed in the Global Electric Agreement that it will transfer all its interests in merchant plant out of PNM by January
1, 2010. PNM will accelerate the mandatory transfer to a date one year after PNM has completed expenditures of $1.25 billion on
merchant plant. PNM may seek a variance from the PRC at any time prior to January 1, 2010 to extend or vacate the time or terms
and conditions requiring the transfer but not beyond January 1, 2015.

Under the Global Electric Agreement, if merchant plant or PYNGS Unit 3 is transferred to a PNM affiliate, PNM’s generation
resources and the affiliate’s generation resources may be jointly dispatched at the merchant affiliate’s sole discretion until January
1, 2015. Joint dispatch of all utility, PVNGS Unit 3 or merchant plant resources would be terminable at any time between 2008 and
2015 at PNM’s discretion, as long as the utility's dispatch capability is not impaired in any way.

PNM agreed to forego recovery of the costs incurred in preparing to transition to a competitive retail market in New Mexico. This
will result in a one-time charge of approximately $16.7 million, pre-tax, in the first quarter of 2003.

In the Global Electric Agreement, PNM, PRC utility staff and intervenors agreed to actively support the repeal of a majority of the
Restructuring Act, as amended. Legislation repealing the Restructuring Act, as amended, and continuing authorization for utilities
to participate in merchant plant for a limited time has been introduced as SB 718. On February 28, 2003, SB 718 passed the Senate
by a vote of 37-2. it is now awaiting action in the House of Representatives. If the repeal does not occur during the 2003 New
Mexico Legislative Session, various modifications to the conditions of the Global Electric Agreement are triggered depending on
how long repeal is delayed.

In summary, the terms of this Global Electric Agreement and the Company’s continuing efforts to control expenses offer significant
benefits to both customers and shareholders in the form of lower rates, a predictable rate path, and the resolution of important
issues affecting implementation of the Company's strategic plan over the next several years. -

The Company is currently unable to predict the impact these proceedings may have on its plans to expand its generating capacity
and its future financial condition and results of operations.

WATER SUPPLY

There is a growing concern in New Mexico about the use of water for power plants, due to the state’s arid climate and current
drought conditions. The availability of sufficient water supplies to meet all the needs of the state, including growth, is a major issue.
An interim committee of the legislature refused to support legislation mandating the use of dry cooling technology. However,
legislation requiring a water conservation plan as part of an application for siting generation plants of a certain size is being
considered in the 2003 session. In building the Afton and Lordsburg plants, the Company has secured sufficient water rights.

The Four Corners region, in which SUGS and Four Corners are located, has been experiencing drought conditions that may affect
the water supply for the plants in 2003, as well as later years if adequate moisture is not received in the watershed that supplies the
area. United States Bureau of Reclamation ("USBR”) is working to assess the adequacy of the water supply under PNM’s USBR
contract for 16,200 acre feet of water that supplies SJGS. Additionally, various stakeholders in the San Juan Basin, including the
New Mexico State Engineer, are evaluating what water rights might be affected by the drought conditions, including water rights
pursuant to the New Mexico state permit that provide 8,000 acre feet of water to SJGS and approximately 28,000 acre feet of water
for Four Corners. PNM is assessing alternatives for temporary supplies of water and is working with USBR and area stakeholders to
minimize the effect on operations of the plants. PNM has assessed its situation with regard to the drought and the alternatives available
to it and does not believe that its operations will be materially affected at this time. However, PNM cannot forecast the weather situation
and its ramifications with any degree of certainty or how regulators and legislators may impact PNM'’s situation in the future, should the
drought continue.
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» PaCIﬁCNorthwest Refund Proceeding

: f\tqv'.aldditioh to the Cél_ifcrhiié refund ‘proceedings, éyget Sound ‘Energy, lhcf, filed a cbgr_i?léiht, at FERC alleging thiat\; ép(:t market
prices in the Pacific Northwest wholesale electric market were unjust and unreasonable. On September 24, 2007, the ALJ issued a

 recommended decision and declined to order refunds associated with wholesale efectric sales in the Pacific Northwest. Prior to the
FERC acting on the ALJ's keéommended.décisidn, several parties joined in filing a motion at the FERC'requesting the FERC to
 reopen the proceeding, in view.of the issuance of the FERC Staff's report on the Enron trading strategies, to permit further investigation

- and discovery into transactions in the wholesale electric market in the Pacific Northwest. The FERC re-opened the docket to receive
“additional evidence from the parties. The FERC did not remand the case to the ALJ, but determined to undertake themselves the

review of any additional evidence in conjunction with the ALJ's recommended decision. On March 3, 2003, Puget Sound and other

‘partieés submitted additional e(:i'\denéefto}FERC alleging the existence of unfawful wholesale electric prices in the Pacific Northwest

and ‘that FERC should require sellers to provide refunds for spot market bilateral sales transactions in the Ffaciﬁc Northwest. The

- Company believes there is nothing in this additional evidence that requires FERC to reverse the prior decision of the ALJ denying

refunds. The Company is unable to predict the ultimate outcome of this FERC proceeding, or whether PNM will be directed to make

any refunds as the result of an order by ‘the FERC.

~ FERC Investigation of “Enron-Like” Trading Practices -

The FERC has also ini@iated a market manipulation investigation, partially in response to tbebanlir@t_cy filing of the Enron

T Corporation (“Enron”) and to allegations that Enron may have engaged in manipulation of portions of the Western wholesale power

market. In connection with ‘that.ir{vgstigl;tioh, all FERC jurisdictional and non-jurisdictional sellers into Western electric and gas markets

. have been required to submit data regarding short-term transactions in 2000-2001. PNM made its data submission on April 2, 2002.
“Subsequently, in May 2002, new Enron documents came to light that raised additional concerns about Enron's trading practices. In

light of these new revelations, the FERC issued additional orders in the pending ‘investigation requiring selfers to respond to

g detailed questions by admitting qf}dénying that they had engaged in trading practices similar to those ‘practiced by Enron and
" certain other sellers, including so-called “wash* transactions. The FERC issued supplemental requests for data submissions. In its

responses to ih_e FERC requests, PNM denied that it had engaged in improper activities such as those identified in Enron’s memos
and also denied engaging in “wash” transactions. PNM admitted engaging in certain activities described in the memos that were

"~ not improper. Where appropriate, PNM's responses addressed any arguable similarities between any of its trading activities and
- those under investigation by the FERC. The FERC staff has issued a preliminary report on its findings, recommending that the FERC
- initiate formal investigative proceedings directed at three companies and the FERC has dorie so. The Company was not amiong the
. companies named. The Company cannot predict the outcome of this investigation. VUL ‘
: C'alifqiniangygr, E}:Change and Pacific Gas and Electric ( ”P_G&E "} Bankruptcies e : . .
n Janua’ry'érid February 2001,"~SQQ§hém California Edison 'Co'fﬁpany‘and PG&E, major purchasers of power from the Cal PX-and

Cal ISO, defaulted on payments due the Cal PX for power purchased from the Cal PX in 2000. These defaults caused the Cal PX to
seek bankruptcy protection. PG&E subsequently also sought bankruptcy protection. PNM has filed its proofs of claims in the Cal PX
and PG&E bankruptcy proceedings. Total amounts due PNM from the Cal PX or Cal ISO for power sold to them in 2000 and 2001

© total approximately $7 million. The Company has provided allowances for the total amount due from the Cal PX and Cal 1SO.

: Califomi'é Attorney Gehera_l Complaihtr :

In March 2002, the California Attorney General filed Va‘con'wplaint with the FERC against numerous sellers régarding prices for wholesale

 ‘electric sales into the Cal IS0 and Cal PX and to the California Department of Water Resources (“Cal DWR"). PNM was among the
sellers identified in this complaint and filed its answer and’ motion to. intervene. In its answer, PNM defended its pricing and

- challenged the theory of liability underlying the California Attorney General's complaint. On May 31, 2002, the FERC entered an
. order denying the Ca_lifomiakAttbméyy General's request to initiate a refund proceeding, but directed sellers, including PNM, to comply

with additional reporting requirements with regard to certain wholesale power transactions. PNM has made filings required by the
May 31, 2002 order. The California Attorney General filed a request for rehearing contesting the FERC decision. On September 23,
2002, the FERC issued its order ‘derr'iying the California Attorney General's request for rehearing. The California Attorney General
has filed a petition for review in.the United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. PNM.has intervened in the Ninth Circuit

" appeal and intends tb pérti,cipaté as a party in that proceeding. The Company cannot predict the outcome of this appeal. As
‘addressed below, the California Attorney General has also threatened litigation against PNM in state court in California based on

- smibrallegations,
S quifamia:Attiqctiéy General Thkéqtghqd .L&igafic’mﬁ 5

. The Célifomié AttorneyGenerai ﬁé_syff.ile\d several lawsuits in California state céur‘t:a‘gainst certain power marketers for alleged

unfair trade prac_t_iégs involving '~alleg§d_6vmh§rges for electricity. By letter dated April 9, 2002, the California Attorney General notified
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PNM of its intention to file a complaint in California state court against PNM concerning its alleged failure to file rates for whbiesal_e :
electricity sold in California and for allegedly charging unjust and unreasonable rates in the California markets. The letter invited
PNM to contact the California Attorney General's office before the complaint was filed, and PNM has met ‘several times with
representatives of the California Attorney General's office. Further discussions are contemplated. To date, a lawsuit has notbeen
filed by the California Attorney General and the Company cannot predict the outcome of this matter. k s

California Antitrust Litigation

Several class action lawsuits have been filed in California state courts against electfic generators and marketers, alleging th'a'tith,éf ;
defendants violated the law by manipulating the market to grossly inflate electricity prices. Named defendants in thh:se-lavésﬁi’c?f'f N
include Duke Energy Corporation (“Duke") and related entities along with other named sellers into the California.market and num'e:tbusl,g;
other “unidentified defendants.” These lawsuits were consolidated for hearing in state court in San Diego. In May 2002, the:Duke
defendants in the foregoing state court litigation served a cross-claim on PNM. Duke also cross-tlaimed against many of the ‘oth"‘er‘ to
sellers into California. Duke asked for declaratory relief and for indemnification for any damages that might ultimately be xmposed o
on Duke. Several defendants removed the case to federal court. The federal judge has entered an order remanding the matter to
state court, but the filing of various procedural motions has delayed the effect of this ruling. PNM has joined with other cross-defendants -
in motions to dismiss the cross-claim. The Company believes it has meritorious defenses but cannot predict the outcome of this‘@gt(t‘éf: e

Block Forward Agreement Litigation

. On February 1, 2002, PNM was served with a declaratory relief complaint filed by the State of C_alifornia in Califorﬁ_ia state cou :
The state’s declaratory relief complaint seeks a determination that the state is not liable for its commandeering of certain energ)
contracts known as “Block Forward Agreements”. The Block Forward Agreements were a form of futures contracts for the'p

of electricity at below-market prices and served as security for paymént by PG&E and SCE for their electricity purcﬁ__és\ésfth?aug ’

the Cal PX. When PG&E and SCE defaulted on payment obligations incurred through the Cal PX, the Cal PX moved to fiquidk
the Block Forward Agreements to satisfy in part the obligations owed by PG&E and SCE. Before the Cal PX could liquidate the:
Block Forward Agreements, California commandeered them for its own purposes. in March 2001, PNM and other similarly sittated
sellers of electricity through the Cal PX filed claims for damages with the California state Victims Compensation and Governim t
Claims Board {"Victims Claims Board”) on the theory that the state, by commandeering the Block Forward Agreements, Had
deprived them of security to which they were entitled under the terms of the Cal PX's tariff. The Victims Claims Board filing wasan
administrative remedy that served as a mandatory prerequisite to filing suit against the state for recovery of damages related tothe
commandeering of the Block Forward Agreements. The Victims Claims Board denied PNM ‘s claim on March 22, 2002. PNM filed
a complaint against the State of California in California state court on September 20, 2002 seeking damages for the state’s
commandeering of the Block Forward Agreements and requesting judicial coordination with the state's declaratory relief action filed
in February 2002 on the basis that the two actions raise gssentially the same issues. The California State court stayed the pmcéed?hgé
through April 11, 2003 pending resolution of certain related issues before the FERC. TR R e

EFFECTS OF CERTAIN EVENTS ON FUTURE REVENUES

On October 1, 1999, Western Area Power Administration (“WAPA") filed a petition at the' FERC requesting the FERC to order -
PNM to provide network transmission service to WAPA under PNM's Open Access Transmission Tariff on behalf of the Un’i{:ed,S_‘ktk tes:
Department of Energy ("DOE") as contracting agent for Kirtland Air Force Base ("KAFB"). . A S

On April 29, 2002, the FERC issued. its Final Order directing PNM to provide the service: The Company filed'é;:r} qppéél of the
April 29th order in the United States Court of Appeals for the 10th:Circuit. The Company, USEA and WAPA e_ntefedk,a..bi‘nd{ng'
‘memorandum of understanding resolving the dispute. The memorandum provided that upan approval. by the- PRC of the
Agreement resolving the Company's electric rate path and merchant plant issues described earlier in Merchant Plant Filing and
Global Electric Agreement, the Company would dismiss its appeal at the Tenth Circuit and WAPA would purchase from the Company -
approximately 60 MW of electric power that will be wheeled under the FERC Final Order to serve KAFB. The power sales agreement .
between the Company and WAPA was executed on February 3, 2003. On March 1, 2003 the power sales agreement went in‘td effect -
and the Company dismissed its appeal at the 10th Circuit on March 5, 2003. e

Due to the price difference between New Mexico jurisdictional retail sales rates and the wholesale rates under the powerf:s‘a{es,;
agreement between the Company and WAPA, the loss in revenue is expected to be $2.8 million per year beginning in.2004.. .

In a separate but related proceeding, PNM and the United States Executive Agencies on behalf of KAFB are involved in-a PRC
case regarding a dispute over specific Company tariff language under which PNM provides service to KAFB. The PRC case was held
in abeyance, pending the outcome of the FERC proceeding. A status conference is scheduled before the PRC Hearing Exah‘ﬁnelf,to
determine how to proceed with the case due to the dismissal of the Tenth Circuit appeal and implementation of the power sales
agreement between WAPA and the Company. ; ‘ RhAS
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NEW SOURCE REVIEW RULES

In November 1999, the Department of Justice at the request of the Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) filed complaints
against seven companies alleging the companies over the past 25 years had made modifications to their plants in violation of the
New Source Review ("NSR") requirements and in some cases the New Source Performance Standard ("NSPS”) regulations, which
could result in the requirement to make costly environmental additions to older power plants. Whether or not the EPA will prevail
is unclear at this time. The EPA has reached a settlement with one of the companies sued by the Justice Department. Discovery
continues in the pending litigation, several of the pending cases are approaching trial, and a trial has commenced in one of the
cases. No complaint has been filed against PNM by the EPA, and the Company believes that all of the routine maintenance, repair,
and replacement work undertaken at its power plants was and continues to be in accordance with the requirements of NSR and
NSPS. However, by letter dated October 23, 2000, the New Mexico Environmental Department (“"NMED") made an information
request of PNM, advising PNM that the NMED was in the process of assisting the EPA in the EPA's nationwide effort “of verifying
that changes made at the country’s utilities have not inadvertently triggered a modification under the Clean Air Act's Prevention of
Significant Determination (“PSD") policies.” PNM has responded to the NMED information request. In late June 2002, PNM
received another information request from the NMED for a list of capital projects budgeted or completed in 2001 or 2002. PNM
has responded to this additional NMED information request.

The National Energy Policy released in May 2001 by the National Energy Policy Development Group called for a review of the
pending EPA enforcement actions. As a result of that review, on June 14, 2002, the EPA announced its intention to pursue steps to
increase energy efficiency, encourage emissions reductions and make improvements and reforms to the NSR program. The EPA
announced that, among other things, the NSR program had impeded or resulted in the cancellation of projects that would maintain
or improve reliability, efficiency and safety of existing power plants. The EPAs June 2002 announcement contemplated further
rulemakings on NSR-related issues and expressly cautioned that the announcement was not intended to affect pending NSR
enforcement actions. Thereafter, on December 31, 2002, the EPA promulgated certain long-awaited revisions to the NSR rules,
along with proposals to revise the routine maintenance, repair and replacement exclusion contained in the regulations. There is no
specific timetable for these revisions and the ultimate resolution of NSR-related issues raised by the enforcement actions remains
unclear. If the EPA were to prevail in the position advanced in the pending litigation, the Company may be required to make significant
capital expenditures, which could have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial position and results of operations.

CITIZEN SUIT UNDER THE CLEAN AIR ACT

By letter dated January 9, 2002, counse for the Grand Canyon Trust and Sierra Club (collectively, “GCT") notified PNM of GCT's
intent to file a so-called “citizen suit” under the Clean Air Act, alleging that PNM and co-owners of the SJGS violated the Clean Air
Act, and the implemention of federal and state regulations, at SJGS. Pursuant to that notification, on May 16, 2002, the GCT filed
suit in federal district court in New Mexico against PNM (but not against the other SJGS co-owners). The suit alleges two violations
of the Clean Air Act and related regulations and permits. First, GCT argues that the plant has violated, and is currently in violation
of, the federal PSD rules, as well as the corresponding provisions of the New Mexico Administrative Code, at SJGS Units 3 and 4.
Second, GCT alleges that the plant has “regularly violated” the 20% opacity limit contained in SIGS's operating permit and set forth
in federal and state regulations at Units 1, 3 and 4. The lawsuit seeks penalties as well as injunctive and declaratory relief. PNM filed
its answer in federal court on June 6, 2002, denying the material allegations in the complaint. Both sides in the litigation have filed
motions for partial summary judgment, but the court has, to date, made no rulings on any of these matters. A trial date on liability
issues has been scheduled on a trailing docket for June 2003. Based on its investigation to date, the Company firmly believes that
the allegations are without merit and PNM vigorously disputes the allegations. PNM has always adhered and continues to adhere
to high environmental standards as evidenced by its ISO 14000 certification. The Company is, however, unable to predict the
ultimate outcome of the matter.

NATURAL GAS EXPLOSION

On April 25, 2001, a natural gas explosion occurred in Santa Fe, New Mexico. The apparent cause of the explosion was a leak
from a PNM line near the location. The explosion destroyed a small building and injured two persons who were working in the building.
PNM’s investigation indicates that the leak was an isolated incident likely caused by a combination of corrosion and increased pressure.
PNM also cooperated with an investigation of the incident by the PRC's Pipeline Safety Bureau (the “Bureau”), which issued its
report on March 18, 2002. The Bureau's report gave PNM notice of probable violations of the New Mexico Pipeline Safety Act and
related regulations. PNM and the Bureau staff entered a compliance agreement addressing the probable violations and filed it with
the PRC for approval on March 4, 2003. PNM agreed to undertake a list of twenty-four corrective actions, including internal policy
changes, retraining employees and enhancing gas line monitoring. PNM has also agreed to voluntarily accelerate spending on
pipeline replacement by more than $10.0 million and to commit an additional $1.8 million to development and implementation of
systems to improve gas line management. The compliance agreement is pending before the PRC. Two lawsuits against PNM by the
injured persons along with several claims for property and business interruption damages have been resolved.
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" have ente mto severat agreements tollmg the runnmg of the statute of hmrtatrons in order to allow NMED to complete its review
S of these filings. The present tolling agreement expires March' 14,:2003. PNM has been advised by NMED counsel that NMED is in
- the process preparing a draft admmrstratwe complrance order addressmg certain claimed violations, but PNM has not seen this
= dra .order and | \as not had a chance to meet with NMED to address any viclations that might be claimed. The Company is unable
to preduct th outcome of thns matter and cannot estlmate the potentlal rmpar:t on the Companys operatuons

Statement of Fman i al Accountrng Standards No 143 "Accountmg for Asset Retirement Obhgatrons (“SFAS 143"). In June 2001,

the Flnanmai Accduntmg Standards Board ("FASB") issued SFAS 143. SFAS' 143 requlres the recognition and measurement of lia-

e " The' Cornpa

R ,brl’ ties assocrated with the. retrrement of tangtble long-lived assets that nesuit from the dcquisition, construction or development and
_orthe normal operations of the !ong~lwed assets; Retirement obhgattons assocrated with: Iong-hved assets included within the scope
‘of SFAS 143 are ‘those for which.a Iegal obbgatron exists under’ enacted laws, statutes, written or oral contracts, including obliga-
ons ansmg under the doctrme of promrssory estoppel Under the standard the asset retrrement obhgatnon (“"ARQ") liability is rec-

- regulatory re very, will be recognlzed as a cumulatrve effect of a change i accountlng prmcrpte net of related income taxes.
is current(y calcufating the Iiabmty assocrated wrth lts AROs but does not beheve there wull be a material effect on
: contnnumg operatrons for the adoptson of thrs standard : Gt

i Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 145 ”Rescrssmn of FASB Statements No. 4 44, and 64, Amendment of FASB
; f»Statement No 13, and Technical Correctrons (”SFAS 145") In Apnl 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 145. This statement updates and
: ‘if’qlanﬁes exastmg accounting pronouncements forthe treatment of gains and losses from extmgutshment of debt and eliminates an

: inconsistericy between requrred accounting for sale-leaseback transactrons and the required accounting for certain lease modifications
... that have similar economic effects as sale-leaseback transactions. In-accordance with previous accounting standards, gains and losses

~from extmgulshment of debt were classrfred as extraordmary gains and losses, The current statement permits gains and losses from
‘ extmgulshment of debt to be¢classified as ordlnary and included in income: from operatnons unless they are unusual in nature or

i "'voccur mfrequently and therefore mcluded asan extraordlnary item.

SFAS 145is effectlve for fi scal years begmnmg after May 15 2002 for the prowsnons related to the rescission of FASB Statements

T i No. 4, 44 and 64, and for all transactions entered into after May 15, 2002 for the provision related to the amendments of FASB

I TR N

. Statement No. 13. The Company does not beheve there will-be a matenal effect from the adoptlon of this standard on the
et Companys consolidated statements of ﬁnancral posmon or resuits of operatrons '

" Statement of Fmanctal Accountmg Standands No 146, "Accountmg for Costs. Assoc:ated w:th Ex:t or Disposal Activities” ("SFAS
g 146”) in Juty 2002; the' FASB issued SFAS 1 46, This statement requires thata habuhty for a cost associated with an exit or disposal

n - activity be recognized at fair valure when the Jiability is incurred and is effectwe for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after

g ;‘December /31,}2002 and riuflifies ElTF 94-3, "L:abllrty Recogmtron for Certain. Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to

L Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).” ft also substanttally nullifies EITF Issue No. 88-10, “Costs

c Jtsﬁna

z Assoc:ated with Lease Modification or Termination.”-Previously issued financial statements; including interim financial statements,
b cannot be restated The Company does not expect its adoptlon of this standard in t‘ scal year 2003 to have a significant impact on
ciz istatements s E T ~

Statement of Fmanctal Ac.countmg Standards No 148 "Accountmg for Stock Based Compensatron ~ Transition and Disclosure,
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 123 and APB Oprmon Na 28" (“SFAS 148") In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 148 that

' . amended SFAS 123 to provide alternative methods of transmon to SFAS 123's fair value method of accounting for stock-based

' employee'compensatlon but does not require. fair value accountmg as prescnbed in SFAS 123. SFAS 148 is effective for fiscal years
after Decembser 15; 2002 It also amends the disclosure prowsvons of SFAS 123 and Accounting Principles Board Opinion
i ,No 28ts: ‘raquire disdosure in the summary of srgmﬁcant accounting policies. of the effects of an entity’s accounting policy with
respect to stock—baSed employee compensatuon on reported net income .and earnings per share in annual and interim financial
 statements. The dfsclosure provisions of SFAS 148 are lncremental to the -existing disclosure requirements of SFAS 123 and are
"apphcable to all companies with stock- based compensation. The Company adopted the disclosure requirements of this standard in
ﬁscal year 2002, but contlnues to account for stock—based compensauon under APB 25.
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i the electnc andq natural gas mdustnes the performance of generatmg umts ancl transmrssron system state and Federa! regulatory

pany also uses certarn denvatwe mstruments for wholesafe power mad(etrng tmnsactnons in order to take advantage of favorable
movemems and market trmmg activmes in the wholesa!e power markets The followmg addmonal rnformatlon is provrded

e ‘,autbonzed nsk exposure hmrts authonzed rnstruments and markets, authonzed personnek pohcres on segregatron of dutres, pohcres

i B Generatron and Marketmg Operatrons

Sen mark- to-market accounting; responstbrlrtres for deal capture; conﬁrmatron procedures responsibilities for repomng results,
“statement on the roIe of derlvatrve transactrons, and hmlts on mdlvrdual transac’tron size (nommal value) :

Yo the extent an open position exlsts ﬂuctuatrng comrnodrty pnces can rmpact i nancral results and financial posmon erther favorably
or unfavorably As a result; the Company cannot predict with precrsxon the |mpact that its rrsk management decrsrons may have on
iy rts busmesses. operatmg results or ﬁnanclal posmon : : :

o Commod:ty Risk

, Marketmg and procurement of energy oﬂen mvolves mar‘ket nsks assoclated wtth managing enengy commodmes
""‘open positions in the energy markets, pnmanly ora shortiterm basns These nsks fall into three drfferent categories: price and volume

+ volatility, bcredrt risk of counterparties. and adequacy of the ‘control envifonment. PNM routmely enters into forward contracts and
optrons to hedge purchase and sale commrtments fue! requnrements and to ‘minimize. the rrsk of; market ﬂuctuatlons on-the

, d esteb]ishing

The Companys wholesale power marketmg operatrons mctudmg both Iong-term contracts and merchant; sales actrvmes ‘are

: i managed through an asset—backed marketing strategy, whefeby PNM’s aggregate net open forward contract position is covered by
~ . its.own excess generatlon capabilities. PNM is exposed to market risk if its generation capabllrtles were drsrupted or if its retail load

b . requirements were greater than antrcrpated I PNM were required to cover all ora portron of its net open contract posrtlon it would
: have to meet its commitments: through market purchases BN : : o

e Under thederrvatwe accountmg rules and the related accountmg rules for e energy contracts the Companyeccounts for its various
i nancraf derivative instruments for. the purchase and's; sale of energy differently based on management's intent when entering into
" the contract. nergy contracts which meet the definition of a derivative under SFAS 133 and do not qualify for‘a normal purchase
ors signation are recorded on the balance sheet at fair market value at each period end. The changes in fair market value are
""recogmzed in eammgs unless: specrﬁc hedge accountmg criteria are'met. Shou!d an energy transaction qualify asa hedge fair market
“value changes from year to year are. recognized on the balance sheet with a correspondlng charge to other compnehensrve income.
" Gains or losses are recognized when the hedged transaction occurs. Normal purchases and sales . are not marked-to-market but
- rather recorded in results of operatrons when the underlymg transactron occurs. '
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the current market values of the contracts, the Company recorded a net loss positio

The following table shows how the net fair value of mark-to- market energy contracts w ‘amounts.included in

the balance sheet:

Year Ended December 31,

(In thousands of dollars)

Mark—to—Market Energy Contracts:

Current asset , $4,531 $ 9461
Long-term asset ‘ 267 1,469
Total mark-to-market assets 4,798 10,930
Current liability : L (5725 . (36,256)
Long-term liability - - CENY
. Total mark-to-market liabilities e (5,725) (41,370)
Net fair value of . : R )
mark-to-market_ energy contracts. $ 927)  $(30,440)

s a&er nettmg
re greater than
settlement of
 the recognition

The mark-to-rnarket energy portfoho pcsr‘trons at December 31 2002 and Dece n
all open purchase and sale contracts. Because the contractual amounts: requrre

certain of these transactions in 2002 and changes in market prices significantly feduceci
of a mark-to-market gain. S

ces and 6Qerfthe- ,
that were valued
tket energy portfolio

The market prices used to value PNM's mark- to-market energy- portfoho are bas
counter quotations. As of December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001, PNM did not
using methods other than quoted prices. The Company did not change its methods for
in 2002 as compared to'2001.

The following table provides detatl of changes in the. Company's mark—to-ma

o liability balance
sheet position from one period to the next: O ‘

Year Ended December 31,

. = (In thousands of dollars} L
Sources of Fair Value Gain/(Loss)

Fair value at beginning of year . $(30,440) $ (4643
Amount realized on contracts dehvered =
during period i 26,339 . 2,239 ¢
Changes in fair-value S 3,174 (28,036)
Net fair value at end of period R $ (927 $ (30,440)
Net change recorded as mark- to-market $ 29,513 " $(25,797) ¢

This table provides the maturity of the net assets/liabilities of the Company, glv se mark-to-market
amounts wr|l settle and generate/(use) cash o

Fair Value at December 31, 2002

: Less than i
Sources of Fair Value 1 year 1-3 Years Total .

( : _ (In thousands of dollars)
Mark-to-market energy contracts $(1,194) $ 267 $ (927)

Note: All values. determined using broker.quotes.
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: As af Déce ber 31 2002 a decrease in market pricing of PNM’s mark-to-market energy portfolio by 10% would have resulted
S m a ‘decrease i m et eammgs of less than 1%. Conversely, an increase in market pricing of this portfolio by 10% would have result-
: 3 net eammgs of less than 1%.

L At December 31 2002 the market value of PNM's normal sales and purchases of electricity was a $54.6 million asset using the
o valuatlcn methods descnbed above. If these transactions did not meet the definition of normal under the accounting rules for derivatives,
-~ the Company would have recognized unrealized gains of $56.3 million as an adjustment to Generation and Marketing operating
evenues based on the change in fair value of these contracts from January 1, 2002 to December 31, 2002.

L The Company assesses the nsk of these long-term contracts and merchant sales activities using the VAR method to maintain the
% ‘Ccmpanys fotal exposure wvthm management-prescribed limits. The Company utilizes the variance/covariance model of VAR, which
is-a probablrst!c madel that measures the risk of loss to earnings in market sensitive instruments. The variance/covariance model
relies on statistical re!atnonsh:ps to:analyze how changes in different markets can affect a portfolio of instruments with different

g characterlst»cs and market: exposure. VAR models are relatively sophisticated; however, the quantitative risk information is limited

" bythe’ parameters established in creating the model. The instruments being evaluated may trigger a potential loss in excess of
" calculated amounts.if changes in commodity prices exceed the confidence level of the model used. The VAR methodology employs
the  following critical | parameters: volatility estimates, market values of open positions, appropriate market-oriented holding periods
and seasonally: adjusted correlation estimates. The Company’s VAR calculation only considers the Company’s forward position for
'the proceedmg eighteen manths. The Comnpany uses a holding period of three days as the estimate of the length of time that will

*. be needed to Irqmdate the positions. The volatility and the correlation estimates measure the impact of adverse price movements
_both at an individual pasition level as well as at the total portfolio level. The confidence level established is 99%. For example, if
VARis cafculated at$10 million, it is estimated at a 99% confidence level that if prices move against PNM’s positions, the Company's
‘,k‘pre—tax gam or lossii in ﬁqwdatlng the portfolio would not exceed $10 million in the three days that it would take to liquidate the portfolio.

The Companys VAR is regularly monitored by the Company's RMC. The RMC has put in place procedures to ensure that increases
in VAR dre reviewed and, if deemed necessary, acted upon to reduce exposures. The VAR represents an estimate of the potential
L gains.or losses that could be recognized on PNM’s wholesale power marketing portfolios given current volatility in the market, and

Jisnot necessarlly indicative of actual results that may occur, since actual future gains and losses will differ from those estimated.
~ Actual gains and losses may differ due to actual fluctuations in market rates, operating exposures, and the timing thereof, as well
\as changes to PNM’s wholesale power marketing portfolios during the year.

The Company accounts for the sale of electric generation in excess of its retail needs or the purchase of power for retail needs

... as-normal. purchases and sales under SFAS 133. Purchases for resale and subsequent resales are accounted for as energy trading

- contracts in accordance with EITF 98-10 and comprise PNM’s mark-to-market portfolio. The VAR for the mark-to-market portfolio

‘was $72,027 at December 31, 2002. The Company also calculates a portfolio VAR, which in addition to its mark-to-market portfolio

o mcludes all contracts: dessgnated as normal sales and purchases, hedges, and its estimated excess generation assets. This excess is

»determlned using average peak forecasts for the respective block of power in the forward market. The Company’s portfolio VAR
was $2. 0 milfion at December 31,.2002.

_ The followmg table shows the high, average and low market risk as measured by VAR on the Company’s mark-to-market portfolio
(three day hoidmg penod 99% two-tailed confidence level):

o ;v«: Ended December 31, 2002

N : {In thousands of dollars)
- $3,408° . $1,112 $29

Credlt R:sk
_PNMis exposedto crednt losses in the event of non- performance or non-payment by counterparties. The Company uses a credit
: management process to assess and monitor the financial conditions of counterparties. Credit exposure is also regularly monitored

by the RMC. The Company provides for losses due to market and credit risk. PNM's credit risk with its largest counterparty as of
: ;DecemberB 2002 was $18.7 million.

in 2001, in response to the increased credit risk and market price volatility described above, the Company provided an allowance
against revenue of $12.0 million for anticipated losses to reflect management's estimate of the increased market and credit risk in
the wholesale power market and its impact on 2001 revenues. As of December 31, 2001, $8.9 million was transferred to the
allowance for bad debt. The Company reduced its reserves by $0.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 as a result of a
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A MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

t:ngs“ At December 31,
'rable to the Company

“ukty secunties as of December 31; 2002 These_ R
%, of the secuntues hefd by the vanous trusts 3

its esfabﬁshed Trades are: typtcally closed-out before the end of a repomng penod and thhm the
were no open posxtlons as of Desember 31 2002 :




MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS k

The accompanying financial statements of PNM Resources, Inc. and its subsidiaries, have been prepared in conformity with account-
ing principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

- The integrity and objectivity of data in these financial statements and accompanying notes, including estimates and judgments
related to matters not concluded by year-end, are the responsibility of management as is all other information in this Annual Report.
Management devotes ongoing attention to review and appraisal of its system of internal controls. This system is designed to provide
reasonable assurance, at an appropriate cost, that the Company'’s assets are protected, that transactions and events are recorded
properly and that financial reports are reliable. The system is augmented by a staff of corporate. auditors; careful attention to selection
and development of qualified financial personnel; and programs to further timely communication and monitoring of policies, standards
and delegated authorities. ' - ' :

The Audit and Ethics Committee of the Board. of Directars of PNM Resources, Inc., composed entirely of outside directors, meets
regularly with financial management, the corporate auditors and the independent auditors to review the work of each. The
independent auditors and corporate auditors have free.access to the Committee, without management representatives present, to
discuss the results of their audits and their comments on the adequacy of internal controls and the quality of financial reporting.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Dinctﬁn and Stockholders of PNM Resources, inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and consolidated statements of capitalization of PNM
Resources, In¢. and subsidiaries-as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the related consolidated statements of earnings, retained
earnings, comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December-31, 2002. These
financial statemenits are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits: k

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit inciudes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements: present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of PNM
Resources, In¢. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and results of their operations and their cash flows for each of «
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the Unitéd

- States of America.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Omaha, Nebraska
February 11, 2003




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

Year Ended December 31,

Operating Revenues: (notes 1 and 2)

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Electric S L $ 895,474 $ 1,952,861 $ 1,289,192
Gas : 272,118 385,418 319,924
Unregulated businesses o . 1,404 1,538 2,158
Total operating revenues N : 1,168,996 2,339,817 ' 1,611,274
Operating Expenses: o
Cost of energy sold S 550,053 1,524,285 949,880
Administrative and general : s 146,231 155,392 147,268
Energy praduction costs 2 i 149,528 152,455 139,894
Depreciation and amortization . ) : X 102,409 96,936 93,059
Transmission and distribution costs C 63870 69,001 60,330
Taxes, other than income taxes L 34,244 30,302 34,405
income taxes {note 1 and 8) R T 20,887 88,769 53,964
Total operating expenses L 1087,222 2,117,140 1,478,800
Operating income : e : 101,774 222,677 132,474
Other Income and Deductions: \ O
Other income S 48,360 52,147 66,246
Other deductions k : L (12,306) (67,257) (11,950)
Income tax (expense) benefit (notes 1and 8) -~~~ (12,144) 7.706 (20,382
Net other income and deductions SO 23,910 (7.404) 33,914
Earnings before interest charges C . 125684 215,273 166,388
Interest Charges: :
Interest on long-term debt (note 4) i : 56,409 62,716 62,823
Other interest charges e 5,003 2,124 2,619
Net interest charges T S s1,412 64,840 65,442
Net Earnings B 64,272 150,433 100,946
Preferred Stock Dividend Requirements L 586 586 586
Net Eacnings Applicable to Common Stock o $ 63686 $ 149,847 $ 100,360
Net Earnings per Share of Common Stock (Basic) (note 7) - .. $ 163 $ 3.83 $ 2.54
Net Earmings per Share of Common Stock (Dikted) frote7) ~ " -~ § 161§ 377 § 253
Dividends Paid per Share of Common Stock B ) 0.86 $ 0.80 $ 0.80

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF RETAINED EARNINGS
CONSOLIDATED BALANGE SHEETS

365,011
¢ $3,026,907




CONSULIDATED BALANGE SHEETS

3
J

(In thousands):~

S 628119 8§ 625632

' (94721) (28,996}
444,651 415388
974049 1012028 .
1760 11852 0

12800 1280
980,092 953884
1.978,701 1,990,360

150,000 o
97,968 . 76841
46189 - 12022
99.019 149,454
393,176 332617

125595 120,153
41,583 44714
& S 52019 54295
note3) - 14137 14163
gl 17,335 14929
404361 - 342557
655030 590811

$3026507  $2913788 -




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

‘ (in thousands)
Net earnings ; 7§ 64,272 $ 150,433 $.100,946
Adjustments to reconcile net eammgs to net cash ﬂows : :
from operating activities:
Depreciation and amomzation ) 115,415 106,768 103,829
Accumulated deferred investment tax credit. (3,131 (3,139) (3,143)
Accumulated deferred income tax. : 47,269 (32,927 21,215
Asset write-offs ' 4,817 24,079 -
Write-off Avistar investments - 12,417 -
Non-recurring merger costs : (2,436) 17,975 6,700
Net unrealized losses on trading and nnvestment co (29,513) 26,172 370
Wholesale credit reserve : - (5,406) 8,456
Other, net- 2,083 (4,297) {(330)
Changes in cer‘_.t,ain assets and liabilities: :
Accounts receNaBles 10,220 92,990 (90,680}
Other assets’ ) (52,655) 32,481 (32,444)
Accounts payable 23,660 (137,073) 107,346
Other liabilities . (82,750) 46,873 17,250
Net cash flows provided by operating actwmes 97,251 327,346 239,515
Cash Flows From Investing Activities: C
-Utility plant additions (240,225) (264,844) (146,878)
Redemption of short-term investments 76,633 - -
Return of principal PVNGS lessor notes 17,531 16,674 16,668
Merger acquisition costs - (11,567} (6,700)
Short-term and long-term investments - (150,000) -
Other (54,366) 2,723 {20,590)
Net cash flows uéed for investing activities. (200,427) (407,014) {157,500)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities: .
Borrowings (note:4) o 115,000 35,000 -
Repayments (note 4) e . - - (32,800)
Exercise of employee stock options (note 10) : T 2412 2,179) (1,232)
Common stock repurchase (note 4) - - (27,867)
Dividends paid (34,226) (31,876) (32,265)
Other 108 (560) (559)
Net cash flows provnded by (used for) fmancmg acti 78,470 385 (94,723)
Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (24,706) (79,283) (12,708)
Beginning of Year g : 5 28,408 107,691 - 120,399
Endof Year S s 3702 5 28408 8107491
Supplemental cash flow disclosures: Sl
interest paid, net of capitalized interest i ©. $ 53,041 $ 62,216 $ 64,045
Income taxes paid, net Lo § 13541 $ 72,146 $ 50,480
Long-term debt assumed for transmission line Sl 8 26152 $ - $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these 1ﬁnafntial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAPITALIZATION

(in thousands)
Common Stock Equity: o =
Common Stock, no par value (note 4) - TR 8 620119 § 625,632

Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax. ol (94,721) (28,996)
Retained earnings R 444,651 415,388
Total common stock equity ' Lo 974,049 1,012,024
Minority Interest (notes 1 and 5) : 11,760 11,652
Cumulative Preferred Stock: (note 4) R

Without mandatory redemption requirements: ‘
1965 Series, 4.58% with a stated value of $100.00and a-
current redemption price of $102.00. Outstandmg shares
at December 31, 2002 were 128,000 : ; 12,800 12,800

Long-Term Debt: (note 4)
Issue and Final Maturity : ‘
First Mortgage Bonds, Pollution Controf Revenue Bonds Sl

5.700% due 2016 5,000 65,000
6.375% due 2022 S 46,000 46,000
Total First Mortgage Bonds SE ', . = 111,000 111,000
Senior Unsecured Notes; Pollution Contro} Revenue Bonds ’
6.300% due 2016 e 77,045 77,045
5.750% due 2022 ‘ S 37,300 37,300
5.800% due 2022 TE 100,000 100,000
6.375% due 2022 T 90,000 90,000
6.375% due 2023 ' w 36,000 36,000
6.400% due 2023 _ RS S 100,000 100,000
6.300% due 2026 LR 23,000 23,000
6.600% due 2029 e 11,500 11,500
Total Senior Unsecured Notes, Pollution Contrcl Revenue Bonds 474,845 474,845
Senior Unsecured Notes:
7.100% due 2005 R 268,420 268,420
7.500% due 2018 ST 100,025 100,025
EIP debt due 2003-2012 L 26,152 -
Other, including unamortized discounts ’ . ¥ (350) (406)
Total long-term debt i t: s 980,092 953,884
Total Capitalization g L 81,978,701 $ 1,990,360

The accompanying notes are an integral part of ;the‘s’e‘ﬂrjéncial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001, 2607

P - The Company s accountmg polrcnes conform‘ o the - -
; "Accountmg for the Effects of Certain 1ypes of Regutatron ¢ rgﬂect the effects

i 'cdsts and. record-

M el

as stranded cost asséts

‘ ~Pnnc1ples of Consohdatlon




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001, 2000

ple generalty accepted in the United States requires
friounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
'ameunts of revenues and expenses during

s aré considered cash equivalents. -

$*) Unit 3, a portion San Juan Generating
stated at ofiginal cost, which includes capitalized.
osts. and an allowance for funds used during
rn: New Mexico rate base. As a result, PNM
‘announced specific actions determined to be
ergy market. As part of this announcement, PNM

PVNGS5. Unit 3 by $181.3 million based on the
sell PVNGS Unit 3. In connection with a rate

ance’ 1 ‘kense and to charge major replacements -
gulated property in the normal course of

s re"cp‘;ery‘ AFUDC uses a weighted average cost

ized as part of the historical cost of acquiring
interest can only be capitalized on non-SFAS 71
that are under construction in.which ground has
eost to be capitalized is theoretically that portion
ré riot made. The rate used for capitalization is
ngs, the weighted average borrowing rate for the
ects; theréfore interest is being capitalized at the
6.4 rmlhon in 2002 No interest was capitalized

': 'ragé_foc eventual resale, and coal held for use

generatmg plant matenals Materials and supphes
propriate. when issued. Materials and supplies are
mmediately expensed when identified.




NOTES 70 CONSOLIDATED FINAND

E;:iﬁ L

Gas in underground storage is valued using a wenghted-average mventory method Wnthdrawals are charged to sales service
customers ‘through the Purchased Gas Ad;ustment Clause ("PGAC"). Ad,ustments to gas in underground storage due to migration

. ~are charged to the PGAC and are based on'a PRC pre—approved pencentage of i injections, o

Coal is -valued. using a rolling welghted average costmg method that is updated based on the current ‘period cost per tons.
Periodic aerial surveys are performed -and any necessary ad]ustments are expensed as rdentlf ed

Inventorres consrsted of the foi(owrng at December 31 {in thousands)

j’Coal el $12678  $12960

“Gasin underground storage ; 2,001 et 3664
‘Matenals and supplies " L. 22,551 19,859
AR : $37,230 - $36483
‘Investments

: The Companys mvestments are comprised of U S. state and mumcrpaf ernment obhgatlons and corporate securities.
: lnvestments with maturities of less than one year are consrdered short-term and | are carried at fair value. All investments are held in
“. the Company‘s name and are in the custody of major financi mstrtut:ons The sp crﬂc rdentlﬁca ron method is used to determine
 the cost of securities disposed of, with realized gains and losses reﬂected in-other income and: expense At December 31, 2002, all
of the Companys investments were classnfred as available ie; Unreahzed gams and Iosses On these Imlestments are included
L.oesa separate component of stockholders equlty, net of al fated tax effect i o -

‘Revenue Recogmtron

The Cornpanys Utility Operatrons record electnc and gas operatmg revenues in the penod of dehvery, whrch includes estimated
amounts for service rendered but unbilled at the end of each accounting period. Utifity Operatrons gas operating revenues exclude
adjustments for differences i in gas purchase costs that are above or below levels. included in base rates but are recoverable under
" the PGAC admumstered by the PRC. The  Company recogmzes thls adjustment when PNM is permrtted to brll under PRC guidelines.

e However the determination of the energy sales to mdrvrdua[ customers is based on the readmg of therr meters which occurs on

- @ systematic basis throughout the. month. At the end of each’ month amounts of energy. dehvered to customers since the date of
~ the last meter reading are estimated and the correspondung unered revenue is estimated. The cycle meter reading results in

"~ unbilled consumption between the date of the last meter readmg in a particular month and the end of the month. Unbilled electric

~revenue is estimated each month based on the daily generation volumes, estimated customeri -usage by ciass, weather factors, line
losses and applrcable customer rates based on regression. anaiysrs reﬂectmg srgruﬁcant hrstoncal trends and expenence

‘ The Company purchases gason behalf of sales-servrce customers while other marketers or producers purthase gas on behalf of
transportation service customers. The Company collects a cost of service revenue for the transportation, delivery, and customer
‘service prowded to these customers. Sales-service tariffs are subject to the terms of- the PGAC while transportation service
customers are metered and billed on the last. day of the month Therefore, the Company estrmates unbrlled decatherms and cost

" of service' revenues for sales-service customers only : B R

. The unblﬂed decatherms are based.on consumptron estlrnates and the assocrated cost of servrce revenue for. the penod A cycle
. bill contains an amount for both the current period's consumption ‘and the prior period’s consumpuon The unbilled portion that is
recorded is estimated as a percentage ‘of the next month’s budgeted cycle bvﬂmgs These budgets are prepared using historical
" data adjusted for known trends; including prior period consumption: Adjustments are also made to the budgeted cycle billings for
'weather variations above or below normal, customer growth, and any. prrcmg changes by: customer rate. and revenue class. Any dif-
ferences between the estimate and the actual cyde brlhngs are recorded m the month brlled

The Companys Generatron and Marketing Operatrons record operatrng revenues to the' Utrhty Operatlons and to third parties in

. the penod of delivery or as services are. provrded These electricity sales.are’ recorded as operating revenues while the electricity
- purchases are recorded as- costs of energy sold: These amounts are recorded on a 'gross basrs, because the Company does not act
as an agent or broker for these merchant energy contracts but takes title' and has the risks and rewards of ownership. Certain sales
to flmv-requrremenm wholesale customers include a cost of energy adjustment r recove ble fixed costs. The Company recognizes

 this adjustment when it is permltted to bill under FERC guidelines. Generatl arketmg Operatlons transactions that are net
settled, are recorded gross in operating revenues and fuel and purchased power expense g

- The Company enters into merchant energy contracts to take advantage of market opportunrtres associated with the purchase and
sale of electricity. Unrealized gains and losses resultmg from the impact of price movements an the Company's-derivative energy
contracts that are not deemed normal purchases and sales or hedges are recogmzed as adjustments to Generation and Marketing




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001, 2000
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NOTES TO CONSOUIDATED F

ative. nnstrument descgnated and quahfying as a cash ﬂow hedgm nstrument reported as. éomponent of other eomprehenswe
dbe. redassxﬁed into eammgs in the same penod or penods dumg wh;ch ‘the hedged forecasted transacnon affects earnings.
“of hedge meffect'f sriess and the change fai

' , "Accountmg for Stock«Based Compensat‘ 8 ("SFAS 123") estabhshed accountmg and dieclosure requnrements
‘ ’usmg a fau' value-based methad of : accauntmg for stock-based em foyee compe ’
Conits’ curren’rtrmethod of accountlng as descnbed above and ' pte

m:thousands

(4,422)

Dl!uted asvreported
Dlluted gro forma

fOr;Income Taxes”

: bf these dlfferences SFAS No. 109 requ:res that rate-regulated enterpnses record deferre& -ome faxes for temporary dif-

',ferences accorded flow-through treatment at the direction of a requlatory ¢ commission, The resulting deferred tax assets and liabilities are

: recorded at the- expected cash flow to'be reﬂec’ced in future rates. Since the PRC has conststenﬂy permntted the recovery’ of

reviously ﬂowd-through tax effects, the Company has estabhshed regplatory habuhtues and assets offsettmg stich deferred tax

;assets and fiabilities. ltems accorded flow-through treatment under PRC Orders, ‘deferred income taxes and the future ratemaking
: effec'rs of such taxes, as ‘well as correspondmg regulatory assets and abilities, are recorded in the. ﬁnancial statements

- Asset Impaarment

The Company eva!uates the carrymg value uf regulatory and tangrbie fo \
}ﬂows to assess necoverablhty in accordance with SFAS 144. Impairment tesung ; g_‘ aesets is petformed penodlcally in
response to changes in market canditions resultlng from industry deregulation. Power generatt .

: wholesale markets are e\ealuated ona group basis using future unclescoun

sed on current open market price




OLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Cropnt, 2000

conditions. The Campa are tested as an

individual group

Change in Presehta’qq
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIA!

DECEMBEY

~ with union emplay 's‘ ﬂucfuatmns in fuel purchased power and»gas prut:eS* the actxons of uti

oindaw and

a ] ‘ & early 1990s, federal

S 7 akers began nvest:gatmg and lmple_ entmg major reforms regardmg the public utility industry, designed to
= :transform ctri generation into a ‘competitive business - eparate from the regulated monopol y»buémesées of transmission and
- distribution, at least on a functional basis: These reforms introduced new risks’ into the Company's business which had the potential
-0 impact future rasults such as the Company’s ability to recover stranded costs, incurred prewously in providing power generation

. to electric service customers, the market price of electricity and natural gas costs, and the costs of transition to an unregulated status.

 market and transmlssron service, -

» :In add»tlon as-a’result of dereguiatlon, the Company ‘may face competition from companies ‘with greater financial and other
‘resources. However asa result of the energy erisis in-California and the Global Electric Agreement (see Note 12), plans for restructuring

' the industry are undergomg furldamental revnew Legislation to repea! exlstmg !aw prov, ing for customer choice and competition
in retail electric power supphes, currenﬂy scheduled to commence in 2007, is being consldered in the 2003 session of the New
Mexnco Leg;slaturem This' leglslat»an, SB 718 has passed the Senate on a 37-2 vote and i currently awaiting action. in the House of
Representatives. Any reforms that may be made to existing plans for restructurlng the mdustry will also affect the Company's future
results, In addition to the fate of retail electric competition in New Mexico, the Companys future results will continue to be affected
on the wholesale stde by the farket price of electricity and natural gas costs, ahd the resufts of federal reforms regardmg the wholesale

: 5mm§rized-ﬁnéhciél inforinaﬂ&n:by‘bUSine\s's‘ségment for 2002, ZQOfand 2000 is'as fdlié i

Electrle ' Gas Toul
(In thousands)
mmwm&
Operatmg revenues
: External customers $ 570,089 $ 272,118 $ 842,207 $ 325,385 $ 1,404 $ 1,168,996
lntemegment revenues 707 - 707 348,935 (349,642) -
Depreciation and amortization 34,025 20,964 54,989 43,837 3,583 102,409
interest income 436 436 872 1,995 42,087 44,954
Interest charges 23,640 13,546 37,186 16,625 7,601 61,412
Operating income (loss) - 60,449 < 18,652 79,101 24,737 (2,064) 101,774
" Income tax expense - 2731 4,351 26,082 4,59 2,353 33,031
. Segment net income 33,163 6,640 39,803 7,013 17,456 64,272
Totalassets 761,694 505,692 1,267,386 1,124,387 635,134 3,026,907
Gr‘éss'pro'pert'y ad‘di‘tidns : 56,698 46,676 103,374 116,447 20,404 240,225
mmmmr : '
‘Operatmgrevenues - B U o SR G e
- External customers $559,226 - §$385418  $944.644  $1393,635 . .§ 1538 . $2339.817
lntersegmem revenues <07 e 07 341,608 (342;3_i1 i -
Depreciation and amortization 32,666 - 21,465 54,131 42766 0 39 96936
Interest income 1626 596 2,222 325 - ;4’3,304', - asm
Interest charges 19,868 11,807 31,675 28.2682 4883 64,840
Operating income (loss) 57,417 UA7730 75,147 150,565 . . (3,035). 222,677
 Income tax expense (benefit). 23,679 3469 27,148 73525 (194100 81,063
Segment net income (foss) 36,130 5,498 41,628 12194 @389 150433
Totalassets ©.749,948 469410 1,219,358 - 1430917 263513 2,913,788
Gross property additions 74,316 48978 123,294 126,605 14945 264,844
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132,474
74,346
00946
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41,611
154,672

196,283
220,310

(38,941) .
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1,495).




HOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANGI:
DECEMBER 3

rged to customers or have
return ‘on these regulatory

opportunity to recover an
costs”). Stranded
recoverable in rates, in
¢ regulatory assets, and
over no less than 50% of siranded costs through a non-bypassable
ive years after rmplementatlo of customer choice. The' PRC. could au: ility to recover up
ded casts if the PRC ﬁnds that recover ore than.50%: (v) isin the publrc intel cessary to maintain
>f the publlc utlllty, iiiy is necessary to_continue adequate and. reliable ‘servic nd (ivy‘'will not cause an
25 ntial or small business customers durmg the transition penod “The Restructu ing Act, as amended, also

covery. of nuclear decommlss«omng costs hy means of a separate wires tharg [ e fif ‘of the underlying

\ct s;arrlended, were
e ,e’cause of the Companys belnef that recovery through‘ rat" s f stablished by law,
be class«fied as regulamry assets ""-'although the- ‘ tion. i

3 v r g-costs previously
regulatory assat! As e result of the Companys evaluatlon of its regulatory strategy in: llght of its holding company
nagement determmed that it would not. seek recovery of a portton of rts prevrously establrshed stra nded costs
ponent of >st
are attrrbutecl to New Mexrco ret '|l'customers m rts Global E ctn Agre
vese stsbegmmng in September 2003 : : :

n ed begmnlng 2007
s charge Transrtron costs include pmfessronal fees financmg costs rncludmg underwriting
’ nsfer of assets, the cost of management mformatron system changes mcl 'lllmg system changes

‘ f sur ‘ly'serwce and energy-
'from lstrlbutlon and transmzssron service assets as permrtted uhder the ‘amended Restructunng Act. The
predret the form its further restructunng will take under delayed smplementatron of customer choice, or if
take place under any repeal of the Restruc:turmg Ar:b

n
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the oﬁsbfidatqd Balance Sheets as of December 31, related 105” nded o transition

2002 o
_ {In thousands)

§ 16720 § 15908

"7100,877 - 17 100,877
35,708 35775
1367 1667

154,672 - .. 154,227

(i4;137) e (14,163)

4682 - (5058

(1,328 (1.408)

®) (18

(20,1520 . (20,647)

'$134,520 .1 $133,580
and conditions that are expected to impact future cost recovery the Company

ture recovery, except for the transition costs (see further discuss on i Note 12).

stock of the Holding Company is 120 million shares with no par value. The nui'nbér of
1, 2002 and 2001, The only change to common stock of’ ing ¢
‘mi_llibn.‘ In 2001, the exercise of stock options of $2.2 millio
1o changés to common stock or additional-paid-in-capital of PN
pef\dent upon a number of factors including the ability of the
 Holding Company's primary source of dividends. As part of
placed certain restrictions on the ability of PNM to pay di
nditions regarding dividends paid by PNM to the holding co;ﬁp:éﬁ
bafow investment grade; and PNM can not pay dividends in an
t earnings without prior PRC approval. Additionally, PNM
ssets; through dividends or other means. s
tare dividends is dependent upon the extent to which cash fi
3l circurnstances and performance, the PRC's decisions in y
in the future, the effect of deregulating generation markets and market economic
& PRC on holding company formation, future growth plans and the related capital
iderations may also affect the Company's ability to pay dividends: i .
mpany order, PNM paid dividends of $127.0 million to the Company on ecember 31, 2001.
rectars declared an additional dividend of approximately $5.5 million, which was paid March
Board of Directors declared a dividend of $24.7 million, which was paid o June 28, 2002. -

M can not pay
as detérmined
arious financial

ows wil support dividends,
s regulatory cases

ng Ccmpany's Board of Directors approved a 4.5 percent increase in thecommon stock dividend.
vidend t6.$0.23 per share, for an indicated annual dividend of $0.92 per sh‘a're{

! bf_ff?ke#@fs;japprcved a plan to repurchase up to $35 million of PNM'g.cbi'nmon stock through

irst quarter mrﬁﬁuggs,t 8, 2000 through December 31, 2000, PNM repurch_ased_fan additional 417,900
anding common stock at & cost of §9.0 million. S :

72




KRR TIPS

Cumulative Preferred Stock

No Holding Company preferred stock is outstanding. The Holding Company's restated articles of incorporation authorize 10 million
shares of preferred stock, which may be issued without restriction. The number of authorized shares of PNM cumulative preferred
stock is 10 million shares. PNM has 128,000 shares, 1965 Seties, 4.58%, par value of $100 per share, of cumulative preferred stock
outstanding. The 1965 Series does not have a mandatory redemption requirement but may be redeemable at 102% of the par value
with accrued dividends. The holders of the 1965 Series are entitled to payment before the holders of common stock in the event
of any liquidation or dissolution or distribution of assets of PNM. In addition, the 1965 Series is not entitled to a sinking fund and
cannot be converted into any other class of stock of PNM.

Long-Term Debt

On March 11, 1998, PNM modified its 1947 Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust so that no future bonds can be issued
under the mortgage. While first mortgage bonds continue to serve as collateral for Pollution Control Bonds (“PCBs”) in the
outstanding principal amount of $111 million, the lien of the mortgage covers only PNM's ownership interest in PYNGS, Senior
unsecured notes ("SUNs"), which were issued under a senior unsecured note indenture, serve as collateral for PCBs in the outstanding
principal amount of $463.3 million. With the exceptlon of the $111 million of PCBs secured by first mortgage bonds, the SUNs are
and will be the senior debt of PNM.

In August 1998, PNM issued and sold $435 million 6f SUN's in two series, the 7.10% Series A due August 1, 2005, in the principal
amount of $300 million, and the 7.50% Series:B due August 1, 2018, in the principal amount of $135 million. In 1999, PNM retired
$31.6 million of its 7.10% SUNs through open market purchases, utilizing the funds from operations and the funds from temporary
investments leaving an outstanding principal balance of $268.4 million. In January 2000, PNM retired $35.0 million of its 7.5% sen-
ior unsecured notes through open market purchases utlhzmg funds from operations and the funds from temporary investments leav-
ing an outstanding principal balance of $100.0 million. The gains recognized on these purchases were immaterial.

On December 20, 2002, the Holding Company: acquired the equity interest of the grantor trust that owns 60% of the EIP
transmission line and related activities. As a result, $26.1,'million of related debt was brought on to the consolidated balance sheet.
This debt was previously disclosed and reported as off balance sheet debt. The EIP debt bears interest at the rate of 10.25%,
requires semi-annual principal and interest payments and matures on April 1, 2012.

Revolving Credit Facility and Other Credit Facilities :

At December 31, 2002, PNM had a $195 million unsecured revolving credit facility (the “Facility”) with an expiration date of
December 18, 2003. PNM must pay commitment fees of 0.2% per year on the unused amount of the Facility. PNM must also pay
a utilization fee of .125% for all borrowings in excess of 33% of the committed amount. PNM also had $20 million in local lines of
credit. In addition, the Holding Company has a $20 million.reciprocal borrowing agreement with PNM and $15 million in Iocal Im'es
of credit.

There were $150 million in outstanding borrowings bearing interest at a weighted average interest rate of 2.759% under the
Facility as of December 31, 2002. On January 31, 2003, this amount was refunded at an interest rate of 2.325%. PNM was in
compliance with all covenants under the Facility.

(5) Lease Commitments

PNM leases interests in Units 1 and 2 of PVNGS, certain transmission facilities, office buildings and other equipment under operating
leases. The lease expense for PVNGS is $66.3 million per year over base lease terms expiring in 2015 and 2016. Covenants in PNM’s
PVNGS Units 1 and 2 lease agreements limit PNM’s ability, without consent of the owner participants in the lease transactions, (j} to
enter into any merger or consolidation, or (ii) except in connection with normal dividend policy, to convey, transfer, lease or
dividend more than 5% of its assets in any single transaction or series of related transactions.

In 1998, PNM established PYNGS Capital Trust (“Capital Trust”) for the purpose of acquiring all the debt underlying the PYNGS
leases. PNM consolidates Capital Trust in its consolidated financial statements. The purchase was funded with the proceeds from
the issuance of $435 million of SUNS (see Note 4), which were loaned to Capital Trust. Capital Trust then acquired and holds the
debt component of the PVNGS leases. For legal and regulatory reasons, the PVNGS lease payment continues to be recorded and
paid gross with the debt component of the payment returned to PNM via Capital Trust. As a result, the net cash outflows for the
PVNGS lease payment were $13.2, $12.4 and $10.7 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The summary of PNM’s future
minimum operating lease payments below reflects the net cash outflow related to the PYNGS leases.
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ustol from the nsk of price fluctuation during the
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nd fourth quarters of 2001. The
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s set!led forward contracts for the
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sales‘opportunities. For the year
ontracts for the sale of electricity
ased $76.7 million or 1.9 million
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! ese_ forward: contracts of $4.8 million
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cal-contracts for the sale of the
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n of its net open contract position,
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December 31, 2002, PNM recogmzed $0.4 million of hedge ineffectiveness
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in earnmgs At December 31 2002 the falr market value of these denvatlve financial instruments was approximately $18.4 million
unfavorable to the Company : : . :

'vand'cathres changes in the corporate credit component of an
] - ing benchmark. The five forward starting interest rate swaps have a
termination date of May 15 2003 for a com ned notnonal amoum‘o\c $182 0 million. There were no fees on the transaction, as they
are imbedded in the rates, and the transaction will be cash settled on the mandatory unwind date (strike date), corresponding to
the reﬁnancmg date of the underfymg debt The settlemem wvll be capttahzed as a cost of issuance and amortized over the life of
the debt asa yleld adJustment. : ~

n Earnlngs Pcr Shm

In accordance wnh SFAS No 128 Eammgs per Share, dual presentatlon of basic and diluted earnings per share has been presented
in the Consolidated Statemen Ea mings. The following reconcnhatnon illustrates the impact on the share amounts of potential
“common shares and the earnings pe share amoun‘s ’ :

'/']

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

‘Net Eammgs $64272  $150,433 $ 100,946

PreferredStock Dawd' s86 586 586
; S $ 63,686 " $ 149,847 $ 100,360
v Average Number of COmmon Shares Outsmndmg = 39,118 39,118 39,487
Net. Earnmgs per Share of Common Stock (Bas:c) o $ 1.63 $ 383 § . 254
Dhuted: -~
NetBamings o geaom $150,433 $ 100,946
Preferred Stock Dmdend Reqmrements ) : v 586 586 586
. Net Earnings Apphcab!e to Common Stock fE L _$63,686 $ 149,847 $ 100,360
Average Number of Common Shares Outstandmg ; LRl 39,118 39,118 39,487
Diluted Effect of Common Stock Equivalents @} 325 613 223
: Average Comrnon and_ Common Equwalent Shares &
Outstandmg 39,443 39,731 39,710

©$ 1.61 $ 377 $ 253

(a) Excludes the effect o .._:average antl dniutxve common stock equrvalents related to out of-the-money options
of 1,602,277 and 105, 336 for the years endw December 31, 2002 and 2000 respectively. There were no anti-dilutive
_common- stock equlvalents in: 2001 : v e A
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$32,192
37,656
56,008
57,373
183,229

216,425
41,583
11,749
67,744
27,043

364,544

$181,31S

expense inck ded i the Consohdated Sﬁfement of Earnmgsfor fhe penod. ’

"*sv' 2585 e
RS

Net change m defferred mcome tax habnhty per above tabte ey

. Change in tax effects of income tax tated regulatcry assets. and hab
. Tax effect of mark-to—market on investments avantable for saie : osus
 Tax effect of ¢ excsss pens‘on habsloty ; ' 36 084

Deferred mcome tax expense for the penod o 444,138 -

‘ The Compa‘: ' has no net operatmg ioss carryforwards as. of Decem,

mm;hnmdoﬁorl’ut-ndnnnmm

Pens;on Pfan

The Company and ltS subsndlanes have a pensuon plan covermg substantlally all: of thenr union and non-umon employees, lncludmg . e
‘ of ' ‘ an ! enefits to be paid to ehglble employees at retirement based primarily upon

years of service with the Company and the : average of thenr highest annual base salary for three consecutive years. The Company's [
policy is to fund actuar[aliy»determmed contributions. Contributions to the plan reflect benefits attributed to employees yearsof
service to date and also for services expected to be prowded in the future Plan assets primarily. consist of common stock fixed ',

income securities, cash equuvalents and rea! estate. . : s Ty :

In December 1996, the Board of Directors’ approved changes to the Companys non-contnbutory defined- benefit plan

‘("Retlrement Plan"} and the. smplementat:on of a 401(k) defined c n’tnbu"on lan effective January 1, 1998. ‘Salaries used. in
Retlrement Plan benef t calcuiattons were fmzen as of December 31, 1997 Addrtuonal credrted servuce can be accrued under the -
Retirement Plan up to alimit determmed by age and years of service. In addltlcm in January 2002, the Company made an aggregate
contribution of $23.5 million to fund- pension and other post-retlremem benef“ t plans. An addmonal aggregate contribution of $1.1

million was made in September 2002 and $1 5 million in December 2002. The Company contnbutlons to the 401(K) plan consist of a
3% non-matchmg contribution, and a 75% match on the first 6% contrlbuted by the employee on a before-tax basis. The Company b
contributed $9.5, $9 0 and $8 9 mnlhon in the years ended December 31 2002 2001 and 2000, respectwely

B




TEMENTS

The following sets forth the pension plan’s fundéd:<~st3tu;,,«cqinpchents of pension costs: ant

plan valuation date of September 30:
7 l n"‘:F‘o'mI‘on Benefits

Changoin.., lanoﬂt"“‘ {

Projected benefit obligation at begmnmg of year % 373,434 $ 321,429 < ;

* Service cost ' 5,539 5544
Interest cost 27,238 25,758
Amendments - 3560 e
Actuarial gain 41,192 36,143 -
Benefits paid (20,518) (19.000)

' Projected benefit obhgatlon atend of perlod 426,885 373434
Change in Plan Assets: ‘ '
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of yéar 339,838 389,827
‘ (20,207) (30,989) -

Actual return on plan assets

Contribution 20,000

- Benefits paid : (20,518}
Fair value of plan assets at end of year s 319,113
Funded. Status - (107,772
Unrecognized net actuarial loss 144,328
3,109

Unrecognized prior service cost
Prepaid pension cost
The amounts recognized in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet consist of:
Accrued benefit liability
Intangible asset
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Net amount recognized
Neighted - A ..'r. a3 of Sep ber 30,
Discount rate
' Expetted return on plan assets

S 39,665 $ 18273

41077720 $ (33,59)
3,109 3,437
144328 48,432
$_39,665 $ 18,273

6.75% 7.50%
9.00%

C ts of Net Periodic Benefit Cost:

Service cost ~$ 5539

Interest cost . 27,238 25,758 .

Expected return on plén assets (34,497) (29,488) 7. :

Amiortization of net gain - 847y

Amortization of tfansifion obligation - (1,158

Amortization of prior service cost 326 34
Net periodic pension benefit $ (1,394) $ (157




. Other Post-retirement Benefits

b f’ .bThe Company provides medical and dental benefits to eligible retirees. Currently, retirees are offered the same benefits as active
st employees after reflecting Medicare coordination. The following sets forth the plan’s funded status, components of net periodic
e benefit cost (in thousands) at the plan valuation date of September 30:

* Other Benefits

Change in Benefit Obligation:
.;‘ééneﬁt obligation at beginning of year ‘ ~° $109,408 $ 81,711
*Service cost 2694 2,644
. Interest cost 8,082 7,906
- Amendments ~ L (31.960) -
~Unrecognized actuarial loss R 32,876 20,500
- Expected benefit paid (3,304) (3.353)
 Benefit obligation at end of period S 117,79 109,408
Change in Plan Assets:

y Fair'value of plan assets at beginning of year Lo 42132 44,694
: ,Acfual return on -plan assets T (6,478) (5,161)
Emiployer contribution S 7,429 6,748
*Benefits paid B (2.881) (3,553)
. Fair value of plan assets at end of year R 40,202 42,728
-~ _Funded Status L (77,594 (66,680)
Unrecognized net transition obligation . 18,171 19,988
‘ “Unrecognized net actuarial loss 74,048 31,763
‘Unrecognized prior service cost S (31,960) -
2 Accrued post-retirement costs ' $ (17,335) $ (14,929)
w.w_. ge Assumptions as of September 30; .
; ‘, Discount rate i 6.75% 7.50%
L E)cpected return on plan assets 9.00% 8.25%

&

Other Benefits

.. Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost:

~ Service cost o $2,694 $ 2,644 $ 1,053

- Interest cost 8,082 7,906 5,428
Expected return on plan assets (4,505) (3,412 (3.572)

- Amortization of net loss 1,320 799 -
‘Amortization of transition obligation ) 1.817 1,817 1,817
Net periodic post-retirement benefit cost $ 9,408 $ 9,754 $ 4,726
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nent »b“e‘neﬁt

A of the
‘ optlons :




Cibl STATEMENTS

Y MY YR A
A, 2087 0T, 26088

A,,summary of ’the status of the Companys stock optnon plans at December 31 and changes dunng the yaars. then ended
‘presented below :

U Welghted L : ‘~w.lgi|ud
Average: . . .o o Average . .

T . e A ; -Exercise S e L . Exercise

g : e : Shares - - B Pr ce s . - Price - Shares Price .|

fgoufstandmg at begmmng ofyear 2981301 U$19.00 0 3336221 $19420 1574418 $18:207
Granted o S - 501 620»" $25745 6000 - - '$22610. 2078500 - $19.403

iExercnsed e st T 356132 L 818044 0 299951 $19.610 295 027( 316,363

forfeited : 16,167 $21.390 60969 $17.961 20670 $17.320
'«‘Outstandmgatendofyear e 35106220 : ©2,981,301 - Gl 3,336,221

. Options exercisable at year-end 1525345 981197 o 916263

i Optrons avallable for future grant PR o7 k: - s RN T ( :

f’\ l

: "r « O ding - oo Optlom Exmlnﬁh Coreed

% Waighted S EAP :
S “Average- -1 Weighted. i S ‘;’Wc(lﬁhiod
O Nunber l-mlnlng S Average s Nnmbor L Average
o fhg 1 §oo Exercine ekt " Exerc

& ,jAt 13/31/9: S Life U Prices "_~At12131/01 S Prices

: : o 73000 B363years  $20429. 0 28000 o stere

 PSP$11.50-$24.313 . . 2588502  6888years - $19332 1433895  $20444

 PEP$0-$2822 . 849120 926years $25745 63450 $25943
. 3510622 7489years . $20906 - 1525345 . §20703

s 1:
$1394 . § 698

5

e gy

- $6,677 $ 83, ¢ $15,054

3 aiua of each optlon grant is determmed on the date of grant usmg the Black Scholes optlon-pncmg model with the
follow _g W ’hted-average assumptlons ok

 Dividend yield s B 3.43% 310%  298%
“'-'Expectedvoianhty ‘ S 3362%  3399%  2643%
4.87% 538% 511%
10.0 years 100 years 100 years




{11) Construction Progrll‘nﬂarildk Jomuy-owmd Plants

The Company's const'ri_.lc_tbn expendtturesfor 2002 were approximately $240 million, inciudi‘ng;e' ]
The Company's proportion » share of operating and maintenance expenses for the ‘joiptfly v
expenses in the Consoli ments of Earnings. e ;

- At December 31,2002 the C r

ndfitures on j‘ointly—ownéd projects.
d plants is included in operating

any’s interests and investments in jointly-owned kge\

: Sl Plant Accumulated commlon omposite
Station (Fuel Type} - in Service Depreciat] “In Progfess Jnterest

(In thousands{

San Juan Generating Station (Coal) - . $710,027 $393,892

Palo Verde ngleq‘r-?&éﬁé ating

Station (Nuclear)* - 8216940 $67.732
Four Corners Power Plant Units 4 o : S
and 5 (Coal) At : $118,509 $88,549 T

*Includes the Company's ihtefé#iin PVNGS Unit 3, the Company’s interest in com
er PVYNGS Units 1 and 2. ey

all PVNGS units
and the Company's ow S

Sah Juan Generating S S
on a 50% shared basis

owns SJGS. At December 31, 2002, SJGS Uni ‘
| Public Power Authority

The Company operates ar s S :
Unit 3 is owned 50% by the Company, 41.8%

with Tucson Electric <

(“SCPPA") and 8.2% eration and Transmission Association, Inc. Unit ?% by the Company, 28.8%
by M-S-R Public Power Agency, ("M-5-R"), 10:04% by the City of Anaheim, California, City of Farmington, 7.2% by
the County of Los Alamos; and e

7.028% by Utah Associated Municipal Power Systems. -

Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station (“PYNGS")
The Company is a participant in the three 1,270 MW units of PVNGS, also known. as
Arizona Public Service Company (“APS”) (the operating agent), Salt River Project, El Pas
California Edison Company, SCPPA and The Department of Water and Power of the. City
undivided interest in PYNGS, with portions of its interests in Units 1 and 2 held under lease

o

Nuclear Power Project, with
wpany (“E! Paso”), Southern
les. The Company has a 10.2%
12 for adaitiqnal discussion.)




‘(12) Commhnlms lnd Contingencies

"capecfty fbr generatlon capacity trade arrangement through September 2004. Beginning October 2004 and continuing through
June 2005, the capacity amount is 39 MW. PNM holds a power purchased agreement (“PPA”) with Tri-State for 50 MW through
June 30 2010 In‘addition, PNM is interconnected with various utilities for economy interchanges and mutual assistance in emergencies.

in 1996 PNM entered into an operating lease for the rights to all the output of a new gas-fired generating plant for 20 years.
.'The operatmg lease’s maximum dependable capacity is 132 MW. In July 2000, the plant went into operation. The gas turbine
'generatlng unit is operated by Delta-Person Limited Partnership (“Delta”) and is located on PNM s retired Person Generating

5 Stauon site'in Albuquerque, New Mexico. Primary fuel for the gas turbine generating unit is natural gas, which is provided by PNM.

“ln addmon, the unit has the capability to utilize low sulfur fuel oil in the event natural gas is not available or cost effective.

“In July 2001 PNM entered into'a Iong-term wholesale power contract with Texas-New Mexico Power ("TNMF‘”) to provrde power

("NMWE"),
NMWE unc

cusfqrriers buy wmd-generated electricity for a small monthly premium. Power from the facility not subscribed by PNM retail
~ customers under the voluntary program will be sold on the wholesale market, either within New Mexico or outside the state.

In December 2002, PNM entered into a two-year contract to supply 80 MW of power to U.S. Navy facilities in San Diego,
‘ Cahfomla PNM. began delivering power under the contract January 1, 2003. The contract runs through March 2005.

'Coai Supply

The coal requwements for the SUGS are being supplied by San Juan Coal Company ("SJCC"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of BHP

Holdmgs, ‘who holds certain Federal, state and private coal leases under a Coal Sales Agreement, pursuant to which SJCC will supply

processed coal for operation of the SJGS until 2017. BHP Minerals International, inc. has guaranteed the obligations of SJCC under

-~ .the agreement, which contemplates the delivery of approximately 103 million tons of coal during its remaining term. That amount
would supply substantially all the requirements of the SJGS through approximately 2017.

Four Comers Power Plant ("Four Corners”) is supplied with coal under a fuel agreement between the owners and BHP Navajo
B ‘,Coal Cumpany {*BNCC"), under which BNCC agreed to supply all the coal requirements for the life of the plant. The current fuel

‘ agreemen ‘ex lres December 31, 2004. Negotiations for an extension have been initiated. BNCC holds a long-term coal mining
lease, wit o) ptions for renewal, from the Navajo Nation and operates a surface mine adjacent to Four Corners with the coal supply
expected to besuffncnent to supply the units for their estnmated useful lives.

’ Natural Ga Supply

The{C pariy contracts for the purchase of gas to serve its retail customers. These contracts are short-term in nature supplying
ja the current heating season and the following off-season months. The price of gas is a pass-through, whereby the
vers 100% of its cost of gas.

natt ’as used as fuel by Generation and Marketing was delivered by Gas. In the second quarter of 2001, Generation and
Marketlng hegan Pprocuring its gas supply independent of the Company and contracting with the Utility Operations for transportation
services on_Iy\ i
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,hcy ct- of 1982 as amended in 1987 (the "Waste Act”). the United States Department of
ept and. dlspbse of all spent nuclear fuel and other high-level radioactive wastes generated by
Act, the DOE was to deve[op facilities necessary for the storage and dispasal of spent
fperatlon by 1998: The DOE has’ announced that such a reposutory cannot be complet—

asks in the compfeted dry storage facvhty prior to: September 2003. PNM cun'entiy estimates that it
(m 2001 doilars) over the life of PYNGS for its share of the fuel costs related to the on-site

e port on March ‘!8 2002 The Bureaus report gave PNM notice of probabie violations of the New Mexico Plpehne Safety Act and
Iy f’refated reguiatnons PNM,and the:Bureau staff entered a comphance agreement addressing the probable vnolatlons and filed it wuth

s, inure. solely 1o the Companys shareholders until December 2007. Smce the new rate Global Electric
: rowde fora fuel cost adjustment, the lower fuel costs sought to be captured by shifting to underground mining
- ""’A"kfor the coal supphes a’t SJGS WI“ ﬂow through to' the Companys earnings largely offsetting the reduction in retail revenues.

87




new or changed
egulations, would
newable energy

PNM will. be able to seek a general rate adjustment during the rate freeze period if comp!}ih’g;wi{
environmental or tax law or regulation, or a new broader application of existing environmerital ‘or tax.laws
compromise its financial integrity. PNM alsa is permitted to capitalize all the reasonable costs-of mandatory
resources, including an after:tax cost of capital of 8.64% to be recorded concurrently with the def 2 ,
'the decommis-
fo $100 million
tely $31 million of
reement. The costs
ONM cannot seek to
tract buyout costs

' PNM is authorized to recover in the stipulated rates and future retail rates, its New Mexi;o~:1utisdic)(i'
sioning costs associated with:the San Juan, La Plata and Navajo surface coal mines. PNM is allowed
of the costs, composed of approximately $69 million in surface coal mine reclamation costs,
contract buyout costs without being subject to prudence challenge by the signatories to the Glob
will be amortized over 17 years commencing September 1, 2003 and in equal amounts each year
recover a return on the unamortized reclamation costs, but could seek to recover a return on the u
" remaining as of December 31, 2007 -in future rate adjustment proceedings. ‘ C

‘with the estimates in
and 2. The portion
neration resource
ase power from
d as generation
expires under the

The stipulated rate's»a!sd pr‘o\ii'd_e"for' full recovery of nuclear. decommissioning costs accrued in ac
the applicable decommissioning cost study during the rate freeze period for PNM's interests in PUNGS
of SJGS Unit 4 previously treated as an excluded resource from PNM's New Mexico retail rates a g
to serve PNM's New Méxflco'zretail and wholesale firm requirements customers’ load. PNM's
Tri-State, Delta Limited Partnership and firm power from Southwestern Public Service Company-w
resources to serve PNM's New Mexico retail and wholesale firm requirements customers' Joad unt
Global Electric Agreement. =~ : : '

PRC approval or other authorization from the PRC is not required for PNM's merchant plant invest
the following conditions: (a)V,I?NMV‘,dbes not invest more than $1.25 billion in merchant plant; (b) PNM h

rating on a stand-alone basis and ‘on a consolidated basis with the Holding Company; and-{¢)
year in gas and electric. utility, non-merchant ‘plant infrastructure needed to maintain adequa
approval for merchant plant participation would be required and expedited: PRC appraval wou
merchant plant if certain specified financial conditions are met. If PNM’s credit rating on a stand-alone
the Holding Company :fa‘ll‘s‘kbe‘low investment grade, however, approvals are needed for new merchant.
continuing to participate in merchant plant projects of more than a certain dollar value and under certain c«

PRC approval ié'no;(.réquiréd\ for PNM to transfer any part of its interests in merchant plaht or PVNGS
any, other legal entity, provided that the following conditions are met: (a) PNM’s debt-to capital ratio w
giving effect to the transfer.and (b): PNM’s investment grade status on a stand-alone basis and on a con !
Holding Company will not be impaired by the transfer of merchant plant or PVNGS Unit 3 at the time © e o

of PNM by January

PNM further agreed in the Global Electric Agreement that it will transfer all its interests.in merch M
$1.25 billion on

1, 2010. PNM will accel‘e;a_té the mandatory transfer to a date one year after PNM has ,c.orhpl]etéd
merchant plant, PNM may seek a variance from the PRC at any time prior to January 1, 2010 to ex
and conditions requiring the transfer but not beyond January 1, 2015. o

Under the Global Etéétr_i‘q Agreement, if merchant plant or PVNGS Unit 3-is transferred. to.a PN .affﬂi&é; PNM's generation
resources and the affiliate's generation resources may be jointly dispatched at the merchant aﬁili?ﬁe’s sole d scretion until January
1, 2015. Joint dispatch of all utility, PVNGS Unit 3 or merchant plant resources would be terminable at any time between 2008 and
2015 at PNM’s discretion, as long as the utility's dispatch capability is not impaired in any way. e TG ‘
PNM agreed to forego recovery of the costs incurred in preparing to transition to a competitive retail ma inNew Mexico. This
will resilt in a one-time write-off of approximately $16.7 million, pre-tax, upon approval by the PRCcf the Global Electric Agreement.




In the Global Electric Agreement, PNM, PRC utility staff and intervenors agreed to actively support the repeal of a majority of the
Restructuring Act of 1999. If the repeal does not occur during the 2003 New Mexico Legislative Session, various modifications to
the conditions of the Global Electric Agreement are triggered depending -on how long repeal is delayed. SB 718 in the 2003
session would repeal the Restructuring Act as contemplated in the Global Electric Agreement. On February 28, 2003, SB 718
passed the Senate by a vote of 37-2. It is currently awaiting action in the House of Representatives.

In summary, the terms of this Global Electric Agreement and the Company’s continuing efforts to control expenses offer significant
benefits to both customers and shareholders in the form of lower rates, a predictable rate path, and the resolution of impartant
issues affecting implementation of the Company’s strategic plan over the next several years.

The Company is currently unable to predict the impact these proceedings may have on its plans to expand its generating capacity
and its future financial condition and results of operations.

Other

There are various claims and lawsuits pending against the Company. The Company is also subject to federal, state and local
environmental laws and regulations, and is currently participating in the investigation and remediation of numerous sites. In addition,
the Company periodically enters into financial commitments in connection with its business operations. It is not possible at this time
for the Company to determine fully the effect of all litigation on its consolidated financial statements. However, the Company has
recorded a liability where the litigation effects can be estimated and where an outcome is considered probable. The Company does
not expect that any known lawsuits, environmental costs and commitments will have a material adverse effect on its financial
condition or results of operations.

The Company is involved in various legal proceedings in the normal course of business. The associated legal costs for these legal
matters are accrued when incurred. It is ‘also the Company’s policy to accrue for legal costs expected to be incurred in connection
with SFAS 5 legal matters when it is probable that a SFAS 5 liability has been incurred and the amount of expected legal costs to
be incurred is reasonably estimable. These estimates include costs for external counsel professional fees.

(13) Environmental Issues

The normal course of operations of the Company necessarily involves activities and substances that expose the Company to potential
liabilities under laws and regulations protecting the environment. Liabilities under these laws and regulations can be material and
in some instances may be imposed without regard to fault, or may be imposed for past acts, even though the past acts may have
been lawful at the time they occurred. Sources of potential environmental liabilities include the Federal Comprehensive
Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 and other similar statutes.

The Company records its environmental liabilities when site assessments or remedial actions are probable and a range of
reasonably likely cleanup costs can be estimated. The Company reviews its sites and measures the liability quarterly, by assessing
a range of reasonably likely costs for each identified site using currently available information, including existing technology,
presently enacted laws and regulations, experience gained at similar sites, and the probable level of involvement and financial condition
of other potentially responsible parties. These estimates include costs for site investigations, remediation, operations and
maintenance, monitoring and site closure. Unless there is a probable amount, the Company records the lower end of such reasonably
likely range of costs (classified as other long-term liabilities at undiscounted amounts).

The Company's recorded minimum liability estimated to remediate its identified sites was $8.5 million and $6.8 million as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The ultimate cost to clean up the Company’s identified sites may vary from its recorded
liability due to numerous uncertainties inherent in the estimation process, such as: the extent and nature of contamination; the
scarcity of reliable data for identified sites; and the time periods over which site remediation is expected to occur.

For the year ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, the Company spent $0.7 million, $1.7 million and $1.6 million respectively, for
remediation. The majority of the December 31, 2002 environmental liability is expected to be paid over the next five years,
funded by cash generated from operations. Future environmental obligations are not expected to have a material impact on the
results of operations or financial condition of the Company.
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NOTES T0 CONSOLIDATED Fitis:

‘,ment Obllgatxons (”SFAS 143"). In June

» ch: time. ag the obhgatron is satisfied. Accretion of
pense lf at the end of the asset'’s life the recorded

xtmgwshment of debt and eliminates an
‘ accountmg for certam lease modlﬁca-

- inconsistency k between required aécountmg for s
. tions that have ‘ cts'a

that a habuhty fora cost assocrated with an exit or disposal
e effectwe for exrt or dlsposal actwmes that are initiated after

: 9 At ale
o Assocrated wrth Lease’ Modlﬁcatnon or: Termrnat:on “ Prevrousfy isstied ﬁnancnal smtements, lncludlng interim. i nancral statements
. cannot be restated The Company does not. expect its adoptlon of this's ndard in ﬁscal year. 2003 to have a significant impact on its
financral statements SR R

i
2
-
2

i

: Statemen of F'manclai Accountmg'Standards No 148 "Accauntmg for Stock Based Compensatlon Transmon and Disclosure,

Amendment of FASB Statement‘ No. 12 and‘APB Oprmon No .28" ("SFAS 148", In December 2002, the' FASB issued SFAS 148 that

. -amended SFAS 123 to’ provide alternat:ve methods of transition to SFAS 123 fatr value method of accounting for stock-based

employee compensatnon but does not reqwre fair value account prescnbed inSFAS 123. SFAS 148 is effective for fiscal years

endmg after December 15,'2002. It also amends the d;sclosure pros ions ‘of SFAS 123 and Accounting Principles Board Opinion

‘No. 28 to require drsclosure in the su mary: of srgmﬁoant accounting p the. effects of anentity’s accounting policy with

", respect ta stock-| based employee compensatronon reported net income and. earnlngs per share in annual and interim financial

‘statements. The disclosure” provisions of SFAS 148 are incremental to the exlstmg ‘disclosure requtrements of SFAS 123 and are

i applicable: toaall companies with. sto<:k~based compensation. The Company adopted the disclosure requirements of this standard in
o scal year 2002, but continues to account for stock based compensatrou‘ under APB 25.

e Financral Accounting. Standards Boar ASB") Jnterpretatuon No. 45 'Guarantor‘s Accountmg and Disclosure Requirements for
S Guarantees Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others, rnterpretanon of FASB Statements No. 5, 57, and 107 and
. .Fescission of FASB fnterpretatron No. 34” CFIN 45" In November 2002 the: FAS_,' ssued FIN 45 whlch enhances the disclosures to be
o \made by a guarantor in its ﬁnancral statements ‘about its obligations unde certain, gu antees that it has issued. It also requires a
~ guarantor to recognize, at ther ception f_‘a gugrantee; a liability for the fair value of the obhgatnons it has undertaken in issuing

g the guarantee FIN 45 apphes 106 .fracts or indemmfrcatlon agreements ‘that contir gem‘ly requvre the guarantor to make payments




‘ ktcta‘the guaranteed party based on changes in an underlying obligation that is related to an: as;_sé“t,‘,l_:iabil_ity, or an equity security of
.. the guaranteed party. The disclosure requirements are effective for financial statements of interim annual periods ending after

. December 15, 2002. The initial recognition and initial measurement provisions are applicable on 2 spective basis to guarantees
or modified after December 31, 2002, irrespective of the guarantor’s fiscal year-end. The guarantor’s previous accounting for
antees issued prior to the date of initial application should not be revised or restated. The Company adopted FIN 45, and such
sption did not have a material impact on the financial statements. T
: inancial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB") Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of erest Entities”, an interpretation

) ﬂof‘.Ac{:ounting Research Bulletin (ARB) No. 51, nConsolidated Financial Statements” (“FIN. 45’?) n January 20"03,_Ythe FASB issued FIN 46
to address the consolidation of variable interest entities that have one or bath of the following charact $: (1) the equity investment at
ot sufficient to permit the entity to finance its activities without additionat subordinated financial support from other parties,
h.is provided through other interests that will absorb some or all of the expected losses he-entity and (2) the equity investors
one or more of the following essential characteristics of a controlling financial interest: (a) the direct or indirect ability to make

ons about the entity’s activities through voting rights or similar rights, (b} '(h'e\ébligﬂéﬁdh_td’aﬁ{sorb the expected losses of the

tity if they occur, which makes it possible for the entity to finance its activities, or (c) the right to receive the expected residual
wrns of the entity if they occur, which is the compensation for the risk of absorbing the expected losses. FASB believes that if a
isiness enterprise has a controlling financial interest in a variable interest e'n't’ity,’ thé’\.assets labilities, and results of the activities
she variable interest entity should be included in consolidated financial statements w se of the business enterprise. FIN 46
uires existing unconsolidated variable interest entities to be consolidated by their priman neficiaries if the entities do not
effectively disperse risks among parties involved. There are also additional disclosure: requi nts for an enterprise that holds
gnificant variable interests in a variable interest entity but is not the primary beneficiary. FiN-4 . applies immediately to variable
iniéfést'é;ntifties created after January 31, 2003, and to variable interest entities in ‘which-as-ente ¢ obtains an interest after that
and may be applied prospectively with a cumulative-effect adjustment as of the date'on whi is first applied or by restating
previously issued financial statements for one or more years with a cumulative-effect adjustmen  the beginning of the first year
stated. Currently, the Company does not have interests in any variable interest entity.

-1 EITF 02-3 “Issues Related to Accounting for Contracts Involved in Energy Trading and Risk Management Activities”; EITF 98-10
i '?'AécoUnting for Contracts Involved in Energy Trading and Risk Management Activities” and Statement of Financial Accounting
. Standards No. 133 (“SFAS 133") “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”. On October 25, 2002, the EITF
. reached a final consensus on EITE 02-3 that rescinds EITF 98-10 and requires that all energy contracts held for trading purposes be
e »prese’hted on a net margin basis in the statement of eamings. The rescission of EITF 98-10 requires that energy contracts which do not
“‘meet the definition of a derivative under SFAS 133 no longer be marked-to-market and recognized in curent earnings. As a result, all

: ‘contracts which were marked to market under EITF 98-10 and must now be accounted.for under the accrual method should be written

'+ loack to cost with any difference included as a'cumulative effect adjustment in-the period,of adoption. This transition provision will
effective for the first quarter of 2003. The rescission of EITF 98-10 did not have amgt‘e;r‘ixali impact on the Company's financial
ondition or results of operations as all contracts previously marked-to-market under the definition provided in EITF 98-10 also met
; he definition of a derivative under SFAS 133 and are properly recorded at fair value with gains and losses recorded in earnings.
o The Company is reviewing its energy contract portfolio to determine whether its contracts meet the definition of trading activities
- tinder EITF 02-3 which should be presented on a net margin basis. The Company will_ reclassify prior periods to a net fnargin basis
. ax:"for those contracts previously accounted for under EITF 98-10 in the first quarter of 2003. lfhe Company does not expect to report
.. revenues and cost of energy sold on a net margin basis on a prospective basis as a result of the application of EITF 023 as none

[ of the of Company's marketing activities meet the definitions of trading activities as prescribed by EITF 02-3.




QUARTERLY OPERATING RESULTS

The unaudited 6peraiing results by quarters for 2002 and 2001 are as follows:

Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 Sep ber 30 D ber 31

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

2002: .
Operating Revenues $313,996 $ 264,569 $ 289,440 $ 300,991
Operating Income - - 32,687 19,449 29,135 20,503
Net Earnings 24,949 11,157 17,797 10,369
Net Earnings per Share (Basic) 0.63 0.28 0.45 0.26
Net Earnings per Share (Diluted) 0.63 0.28 0.45 0.26
2001:
Operating Revenues ‘ $ 736,530 $ 666,091 $ 621,895 $ 315,301
Operating income 77,300 80,547 47,422 17,408
Net Earnings‘ - 63,552 49,597 32,775 4,509
Net Earnings per Share (Basic) 1.62 1.26 0.83 0.11

Net Earnings per Share (Diluted) 1.60 1.24 0.82 0.1

In the opinion of management of the Company, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) necessary
for a fair statement of the results of operations for such periods have been included.
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" COMPARATIVE OPERATING STATISTICS (UNAUDITED)

UWtyCmamaeYurEnd

Electnc ST R : I B
s Resndenttal R R e 345588 . 340656 332332 ‘321 949 319415

~ Commercial e 41092 40065 39,525 38435 o 3resz
~dndustial o M7 3 s o363

- Other ultimate customers L e 796 924 ég_; L 825 ee5 :
“ Total ultimate customE(s_ . _3s7787 382022 372853 . - 361384 358095 .
," ":'Salvesfpr.Rés_aFe‘ i L . : 76 e g K g 83 .
| Towlcustomers 387,863 382101 . 37293 361467 - . 358178
Residential 0o T 411,642 404753 398623
Commercial e 35194 32894 32626
O Industral ' T S8 8050
S Other SRS - 3664 3528 . o 302
1 B R .~~‘Transportat|on T S 27 3 32 32
P Totaleustomers 450585 441259 434943 . 426315 -

amwm;ms.m
Energy Sales—KWH (in thousands) ; T : S PR
Firm-requirements wholesale 581,428 616,703 . 330,003 < .179249 - 278415
 Other contracted off-system - S a192788 6,900.539 7315679 10 6,196,499 ¢ 4033931
 Economy energy sales ' o 4675939 5059808 4,706,446 - . 4795873 4469769
Total salés to ultimate customers , 9.450,155 12,577,100 12,352,128 11,171,621 - ‘8782315
“Intersegment sales . . 7406506 7255297 . 7088943 6803, 5831 6739874
 Total energysales . : 16,856,661 19,832,397 . 19.441071 17, 975204 . 15522,189

o Fu'm-reqmrementswholesale A L j$ 25973 24754 § 15540 '-.s.,f }’7,046“ $.10,708
" Other contracted off-system 135322 879824 364278 226773 142115
Economyenergysales. . 116280 512,209 .. 368374 . - 131,549 122156
Total revenues to ultimate customers S 277578 1416787 748192 . 365368 .- 274,979
Intersegment revenues o 348,935 341408 324744 318872 362722
: .lescellaneous electric revenués' X L : 47,810 i .(23.152)," ‘ L ‘ 2,242 e G T4y 4,657
Total generation revenues . . . $ 674320 < $1735243 7 $1.075178.. % ’689 981§ 642,358

Gmmuonmdmmonnﬂmcmmmumw. 76 ENOSS 79 gy 53

Reliable Net Capability—KW i 1,734,000 1,521,000 . 1,521,000 1521000 . 1,506,000
Coincidental Peak Demand—KW _ 1,456,000 1,397,000 1,368,000 7 1,291,000 " 1,313,000
Average Fuel Cost per Million BTU % 13910 8 16007 $ 13827 § 13169 . 1.2433
- BTU per KWh of Net Generation ‘ 10568 10549 10547 10490 10,784
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Sto‘ kholders will be held at 9:30 am on May 13, 2003 at The South Broadway Cultural Center,
roxies. will be requested from stockholders when the notice of meeting and proxy statement

Overnight, Registered or Certified ‘Mail:

Mellon Investor Services
85 Challenger Road
Ridgefield Park, NJ 07660

vestment and direct stock purchase plan as a service to both new investors and current
I reinvestment of dividends, the PNM Direct Plan-gives shareholders the opportunity to
nformatton about the Plan and enrollment forms are avallable by calling Mellon-Investor:’

a
3

High Low Dividend High Low

©$30.760 . $25.330 %020 $29.340 $22.875
8022 - $30550 $23.300 $0.20 $37.800 $28.700
022 $24330  $17.250 $0.20 $33.550 $24.752
$24.670 $17.470 $0.20 $28.680 $24.350

oW NS

1 10-K (annual report) and Form 10-Q (quarterly report) to the Securities and Exchange Commission
eases, an 11-year Financial and Statistical Report and other corporate literature are available free
by accessing the information on the Internet at pnm.com or by writing the Vice President,

quarterly earnings results and other important information, visit the PNM website at pnm.com.

Investor Relations:

Barbara L. Barsky

Vice President, Investor Relations
Phone: 505-241-2662

Fax: 505-241-2367

E-Mail: bbarsky@pnm.com
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